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Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
Honorable Mayor and Members of 
  The City Council 
City of Montgomery, Alabama 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the City of Montgomery, Alabama (the City) as of and for the year ended  
September 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We did not 
audit the financial statements of the City of Montgomery Employees’ Retirement System (Pension Trust 
Fund), the fiduciary fund of the City, or the Montgomery City-County Public Library, the discretely 
presented component unit of the City.  Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose 
reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included 
for the Pension Trust Fund and Montgomery City-County Public Library, is based solely on the report of 
the other auditors.  We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement.  The financial statements of the Pension Trust Fund and the 
Montgomery City-County Public Library were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 



Oninions
In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to

above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the govemmental

activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of September 30, 2014, and the respective changes

in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison
for the General Fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America.

Chanse in Accountine Principle
As described in Note 22 to the financial statements, in2014 the City adopted new accounting guidance,

GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to that matter.

Other Matters
Require d Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and the schedule of funding progress of the Employees' Retirement System and

the Employees' Health Insurance Plan on pages 13 through 25 and pages 81 through 82 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an

essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the

information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic

financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because

the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any

assurance.

Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that

collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and

individual nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary comparison schedule, and statistical section

are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and other supplementary information
are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been

subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally

accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statements, and budgetary comparison schedule are fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

Other Reportine Required bv Governmental Auditine Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 10,

2015 on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on ourtests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the

internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City's intemal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

{tr},t*M4Co, PC

Montgomery, Alabama
March 10. 2015
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSN

The City's Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is a narrative overview and analysis of the

City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30,2014. The intent of this MD&A is to
provide a brief, objective, and easily readable analysis of the City's financial performance for the year

and its financial position at fiscal year ended September 30,2014.

Readers are encouraged to read the MD&A in conjunction with additional information furnished in the

letter of transmittal and the City's financial statements included in this report.

Financial Highlights

The City of Montgomery's assets were less than its liabilities at September 30,2014, by $15,513,814
(net position). Howeve\$240,214,476 was either restricted or invested in capital assets leaving a deficit
unrestricted balance of $255,728,290.

The City's total net position decreased $23,856,026, This decrease was primarily due to the

depreciation expense incuned for the year, the net increase in other postemployment benefits obligation,
and the implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 65. This
statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassiff certain items that had

been previously reported as assets and liabilities. Certain items were reclassified as deferred outflows or
defened inflows of resources, and certain items were required to be expensed. The City had

unamortized debt issuance costs for the period ending September 30, 2013 that resulted in the

restatement of the beginning net position of govemmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The calculations for the restated items can be found in the notes to the financial statements

on page 80.

At September 30, 2014, the City of Montgomery's governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $31,594,806, a decrease of $5,200,631 over the previous fiscal year. Of the ending
govemmental fund balance, $6,323,253 is non-spendable for assets held for resale, inventories, long-
term receivables, and prepaid items. The largest portion of the governmental fund balance is in the
amount of $14,818,006 which is restricted for capital projects, debt service, intergovemmental activities,
the City's landfill, Municipal Court Corrections, the Riverfront Stadium, an emergency communication
center, and other miscellaneous projects. The combined totals for non-spendable and restricted, plus the

unassigned amount of $10,453,547 yields a total combined ending fund balance of $31,594,806 for
fiscal year 2014.

The General Fund reported an unassigned fund balance of $11,778,557 or 6.5% of the total general fund
expenditures due to deficits in the Crty's internal service fund for healthcare costs and in the City's
enterprise funds. Although expenditures for healthcare costs have continued to rise in recent years for
City employees and their dependents, the costs were significantly less than the previous year. The

decrease in expenditures for healthcare costs at September 30, 2014 werc $2,526,739 or 34.4Yo less than

the previous year. Additionally, the City incorporated provisions to reduce advances to other funds.

Management has implemented policy to ensure that adequate appropriations are included in future
budgets to circumvent the need to transfer such expenditures from the Intemal Service Fund and

Enterprise Funds to the General Fund.

13



Govemmental Activities revenue increased $9,723,289 or 4.0o/o over the previous year. The increase in
revenues was primarily attributable to a36.7% increase in operating grants and contributions, a99.2%o

increase in capital grants and conhibutions, a2.3% increase in sales tax revenue, and a 2.9o/o increase in
business licenses. Expenses in Govemmental Activities decreased $3,166,674 or l.2o/o from the

previous year. The decrease in expenses was primarily due to operating efficiency of departments,

filling only positions that were vital to City operations, and mandated departmental budget cuts.

Long-term debt, consisting of general obligation bonds, capital leases, and notes payable decreased

$10,192,640 or 3.2Yo from the previous year. The decrease was due to making larger higher principal

payments than was paid in previous years.

Overview of the Financial Statements

Management's Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of
Montgomery's financial statements which include: government-wide financial statements, fund financial

statements, and notes to the financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report

contains supplementary information which may be of interest to the reader.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of
the financial position of the City of Montgomery and are similar to private-sector financial statements.

The statements include a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of Activities.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City's assets, liabilities, and defened

inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. This statement combines and

consolidates govemmental funds' current financial resources (short-term expendable resources) with
capital assets and long-term debt. Over time, increases or decreases may serye as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities follows the Statement of Net Position and presents information on how the

City's net position changed during the fiscal year. The statement presents all underlying events, which
give rise to the change in net position, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Items such as

accounts payable or vacation leuu" (earned, but unused) will produce changes in cash in a future fiscal

period.

Both of the govemment-wide financial statements distinguish functions that are supported by taxes and

intergovemmental revenues (govemmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover

all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).

Governmental activities reported in the statements include general government, public works, public

safety, cultural and recreational, and debt service. The business-type activities include the Montgomery

Area Transit System, the Montgomery Zoo, Municipal Golf, and the Montgomery River Boat' The

Food Services were transferred out of business-type activities and absorbed into govemmental activities

in fiscal veu 2014.
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The govemment-wide financial statements not only include the City of Montgomery (the primary
government), but also a legally separate component, the Montgomery City-County Public Library, for
which the City of Montgomery is financially accountable. Financial information for this component unit
is reported separately from the information presented for the primary government. The Solid Waste

Disposal Authority (SWDA) and the Emergency Communications District (ECD) are blended
component units and function for all practical pu{poses as departments of the City of Montgomery and

have therefore been included as an integral part of the primary government. Both entities are legally
separate from the City of Montgomery.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been

segregated for specific activities or objectives. Like most state and local governments, the City of
Montgomery uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal

matters. All funds of the City of Montgomery can be divided into three categories: governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for the same functions as those reported under the government-

wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities. However, unlike the govemment-wide
financial statements, govemmental fund financial statements focus on events that produce near-term

inflows and outflows of expendable resources as well as the balances of expendable resources available

at the end of the year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term

fi nancing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of government-wide financial statements,

it is useful to compare information presented in the governmental funds with similar information
presented in the govemmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Comparing

functions between the statements for governmental funds and statement of activities, the reader may

better understand the long-term impact of the City's near-term financing decisions. Both the
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and

changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental

funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains eighteen (18) individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in
the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and in the Govemmental Fund Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance of the major funds. Data from fourteen (14) governmental

funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-

major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements in the supplementary

information section of this report.

The City of Montgomery adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary

comparison statement has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this
budget.
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Proprietary Funds

The City of Montgomery maintains two types of proprietary funds: enterprise funds and an internal
service fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities
in the govemment-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for the

Montgomery Area Transit System, the Montgomery Zoo, Municipal Golf, and the Montgomery River
Boat. The internal service fund is an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally
among the City's various functions. The City of Montgomery uses an intemal service fund to account

for its employees' medical insuranca, workers' compensation, and liability insurance. The internal
service fund is presented in the fund financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds

The City of Montgomery uses fiduciary funds to account for resources held for the benefit of parties

outside of City government. These funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement

because the resources of these funds are not available to support City programs. Accounting for these

funds is similar to accounting for proprietary funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
both government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain

required supplementary information concerning the City of Montgomery's progress in funding its
obligation to provide pension and other postemployment benefits to its employees. Required

supplementary information can be found beginning on page 81 of this report.

Combining and individual statements and schedules referred to earlier, which present more detailed

views of nonmajor funds used in govemmental and enterprise activities, can be found beginning on page

83 of this report.
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Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, changes in net position over time can be one of the best and
the City's financial position. The City of Montgomery's total assets were less

$ 15,513,814, as reflected in the following table:

most useful indicators of
than its total liabilities by

Governmental

Activities

Business-type

Activities Total

20r4 20r3 2014 2013 20r4 2013

50,468,416 $

3,3 90,3 g2

37 4,092,630

65,7 42,859

4,57 5,263

385,100,855

1,939,286 $
(3,380,382)

27,223,447

2,183,087

(4,57 5,263)

28,790,949

52,407,702 $

401,3 16,077

67 ,925,946

4 I 3,891 ,804

427 ,941,429 455,418,977 25,782,351 26,398,773 453,723,779 481 ,817 ,7 50

9,224,686 11,472,800 9,224,686 11,472,800

9,224,686 I 1,472,800 9,224,686 | | ,472,800

Cunent and other assets

(net of internal balances)

Internal balances

Capital assets

Total Assets

Defened charge on refunding

Total Defened Outflows

of Resources

Long-term liabilities

Other liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net position

Net investment in

Capital assets

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

455,207,953

22,162,537

451,696,270

35,758,750

477 ,106

614,683

472,788

369,591

455,685,059

22,777,220

452,169,058

36J28,341

477,370,490 487,455,020 I ,091,789 842,379 478,462,279 488,297,399

201,285,470

I1,705,559

(253,195,405)

202,191,726

17,367 ,469

(240,122,438)

27,223,447

(2,532,885)

28,790,949

(3,234,555)

228,508 ,917 230,982,67 5

I 1,705,559 17 ,367 ,469

(255,728,290) (243,356,993)

(40,204,376) $ (20,563,243) $ 24,690,562 $ 25,556,394 (15,513,814) $ 4,993,L51

The largest portion of net position is investment in capital assets (e.g., land, construction in progress,

buildings, infrastructure, improvements other than buildings, and machinery and equipment) less any

related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. Because City capital assets are used to provide

services to citizens, the assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in
capital assets is reported net of related debt, the capital assets are not used to liquidate the liability.
Consequently, other resources are used to repay any associated debt.

An additional portion of the City's resources is restricted, or has restrictions on how they may be used.

Governmental activities restricted net position totaled $11,705,559 and is restricted for use in public
works, public safety, cultural and recreational, and capital projects. The City's overall net position for
governmental activities and business-type activities was, in part, aresult of outstanding debt incurred for
facilities owned by the Montgomery County Board of Education for the year ended Sepember 30,2014.
As reflected in the following table, the City's net position decreased by $20,506,965 or 410.7o/o during
the fiscal year. This decrease was primarily due to the following reasons:

(l)

(2)

(3)

The City recognized a net increase in other postemployment benefit (OPEB) liability of
$13,053,682 for the year ended September 30,2014.
Depreciation expense of $24,188,176 ongovernmental activities and $1,653,994 on business-

type activities.
Decreases in property taxes, and other miscellaneous taxes and revenue.
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City of Montgomery's Changes in Net Position

Governmental

Activities

Business-type

Activities Total

20t4 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Revenues

Program revenues

Charges for services

Operating grants and

contributions

Capital grants and

contributions

General revenues

Sales taxes

Property taxes

Other taxes

Business licenses

Other

Total revenues

Expenses

General government

Public works

Public safety

Cultural and recreational

Interest on long-term debt

Montgomery Area Transit

System

Montgomery Zoo

Municipal Golf
Montgomery River Boat

Food Services

Total expenses

Decrease in net position before transfers

Transfers in (out)

Decrease in net position

Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

38,584,671 $

l5,l12,143

12,311,447

95,775,104

28,963,542

18,624,580

33 ,899,942
7,447,919

38,345,972

I1,055,1l4

6,179,104

93,635,244

29,394,346

19,269,755

32,949,782

10,166,742

l5,l12,143

12,311,447

95,775,104

29,963,542

18,624,580

33,899,942

7,448,452

I I ,055,1 l4

6,179,104

93,635,244

29 "394,346
19,269,755

32,949,782

l0,l 67,095

5,774,790 $ 6,483,458 44,359,461 $ 44,829,430

s33 353

250,719,348 240,996,059 5,775,323 6,483,811 256,494,671 247,479,870

81,766,281

44,67 4,284

94,292,962

33,624,299

13,216,304

90,962,630

44,184,691

91,141,018

32,880,877

11,571,588

81,766,281 90,962,630

44,674,284 44,184,691

94,292,962 91,141,01 8

33,624,299 32,880,877

13,216,304 11,571,588

2,508,276 2,968,117

4,236,650 4,314,540

1,964,366 2,1 00,1 03

718'2-t4 
',3ll,ill

2,508,276

4,236,650

1,964,366

718,214

2,968,117

4,314,540

2,100, I 03

696,408

1,086,281

267,574,130 270,7 40 ,804 9,427 ,506 11,165,449 277,001,636 281,906,253

(16,854,782)

(2,786,351)

(29,744,745)

251,687

(3,652,183)

2,786,351

(4,681,638)

(251,687)

(20,506,965) (34,426,383)

(19 ,641 ,133)
(20,563,243)

(29,493,058)

8,929,815

(865,832)

25,556,394

(4,933,325)

30,489,719

(20,506,965) (34,426,383)

4,993,151 39,419,534

(40,204,376) $ (20,563,243) 24,690,562 $ 25,556,394 ( 15,5 13,814) $ 4,993,151

l8
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Governmental Activities 
 
Governmental activities decreased the City’s net position by $19,641,133, thereby accounting for 95.8% 
of the total decline in net position of the City.  Key elements of the decrease in net position were due to 
depreciation expense, increase in other postemployment benefits, and transfers to business-type 
activities.  The decrease was offset by increases in operating grants and contributions, capital grants and 
contributions, sales tax, and business licenses receipts in 2014. 
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Charges for Services
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Business-type Activities 
 
Business-type activities decreased the City’s net position by $865,832, which contributed 4.2% to the 
total decline in the net position of the City.  The primary factor for the decrease in net position was due 
to the depreciation of capital assets.  Additionally, charges for services decreased $708,668 or 10.9% 
from the previous year. 
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Fund Level Information 
 
As noted earlier, the City of Montgomery employs fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental Funds 
 
Governmental funds provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of expendable 
resources.  Governmental fund types include General, Capital Projects, Debt Service, and Special 
Revenue Funds. 
 
In assessing the City of Montgomery’s financing requirements, unassigned fund balance is a particularly 
useful measure of net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.  As of September 30, 
2014, the City of Montgomery’s Governmental Funds had an unassigned fund balance for governmental 
activities in the amount of $10,453,547.  
 



At September 30, 2014, total fund balance in the General Fund was 517,673,543. The fund balance in
the General Fund increased 52,543,213 or 16.80/o from the previous year. The increase in the fund
balance was due to increases in taxes, licenses and permits, and other miscellaneous revenues.

Total revenue of the General Fund increased by $6,835,276 or 3.3Yo in2014 compared to the previous
year. This was due to an increase in taxes, licenses and permits, as well as other miscellaneous
revenues. Expenditures of the General Fund at fiscal year-end were $3,797,974 or 2.1%o less than the
previous year which was primarily due to effrcient departmental management of operations.

Capital Project Fund - The fund is used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital

facilities. The fund balance of the capital project fund decreased $7,944,132 or 89,4% from the previous

year due to completion or near-completion of several capital projects that were in process in 2013 such

as the Cramton Bowl improvements, Genetta Park construction, renovations for a new fire and police
precinct, street infrastructure improvements, and for software and building acquisitions.

Debt Service Fund - The fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for the payment of
general long-term debt principal, interest, and other related costs. The fund balance of the Debt Service

Fund increased $897,037 or 74.0% at September 30, 2014. The increase in fund balance was primarily
attributable to an increase in transfers in the amount of $3,289,556 or 18.8% from the General Fund.

Miscellaneous Special Revenue Fund - The fund is used to account for proceeds of specific revenue

resources that are legally restricted by Federal, State, or committed by the City Council for specific uses.

At September 30, 20l4,the fund balance of the Special Revenue Funds decreased $ 1,040,239 or 13.4Yo

over the previous year. The primary reason for the decrease in fund balance was due to a decrease in
intergovemmental revenues.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary fund statements provide the same information as in the business activities column of the

govemment-wide statements, but in greater detail and on a fund basis for enterprise funds and the City's
internal service fund.

Enterprise Funds - Net position of the Montgomery Area Transit System (MATS), the Montgomery
Zoo, Municipal Golf and Montgomery River Boat at the end of the year was $ 26,540,272. Total net

position decreased for enterprise funds by $652,710 or 2.4%o in 2014 from the previous year. Total
operating revenue decreased $708,668 or l0.9oh for enterprise funds which was mainly due to Food

Service operations being transferred out of the enterprise funds to the General Fund. The revenue for
the remainder of the nonmajor enterprise funds was slightly more than the previous year.

Internal Service Fund - Intemal service funds are designed to recover the intemal costs of government

services provided to other fund groups. At September 30, 2014, the intemal service fund reported a

deficit of $4,810,856 for its net position balance, which was due to the amount of estimated claims
payable and advances payable to the General Fund. Because claims and advances payable were less

than they had been in previous years, the aforementioned deficit was down $2,526,739 or 34.4o/o from
the previous year.
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital assets - The City of Montgomery's investment in capital assets for govemmental and business-

type activities as of September 30, 2014, was $401,316,077 (net of accumulated depreciation). Capital

asset investments include land, buildings, construction in progress, infrastructure, improvements other

than buildings, and machinery and equipment, net of depreciation.

Capital Assets

Governmental
Activities

Business-type

Activities Total

20r4 2013 20t4 2013 20t4 2013

Land

Buildings

Improvements other than

buildings

Machinery and equipment

Infrastruchre
Construction in progress

Totals

54,534,619 $

129,346,416

50,202,159

32,912,330

94,027,692

55,33 |,614
130,164,515

48,125,175

33,678,655

95,896,615

1,047,942 $

21,413,313

1,416,874

3,345,318 36,257,648

94,027,692

37,904,044

95,896,615

1,047,942

21,962,793

1,554,825

$ 21,223,447 $_ 28,,290,949

2014

55,582,561 $ 56,379,556

150,759,729 152,127,308

51,619,033 49,680,000

13,069,414 21,904,281

--

$ 3?4,092,630 $ 385,100,855
- 13,069,41! ,21.90-81$,, 4ot,3t6,o?? $ 

,1t3,8rJ*891

Additional information on the City of Montgomery's capital assets can be found in Note 7 beginning on
page 6l of this report.

Long-term debt - At the end of the fiscal year the City of Montgomery had secured and bonded debt

outstanding of $ 307,524,84L Of this amount $ 287,898,850 comprises debt backed by the full faith and

credit of the City, $17,895,621is comprised of long-term leases, and $ 1,730,370 is comprised of anote
payable. The City's long-term debt decreased $10,192,640 or 3.2o/o from the previous year due to
paying off higher principal payments compared to previous years and not acquiring an new or refunded

debt.

Long-term Debt

General obligation bonds

Capital leases

Note payable

Totals

The City of Montgomery canies
Poor's. These ratings reflect the
management and staff. See Note
outstanding obligations.

$ 287,898,850

17,895,621

2013

$ 297,808,863

18,956 ,267
952.351

Increase
(Decrease)

(9,910,01 3)
( I,060 ,646)

1,730,370 778.019

$ 307,524,841 $ 317 ,717 ,481 $ ( 10, 192,640)

an Al rating from Moody's and an AA rating from Standard and

strength of the City's economy and the efficiency of operations by
9 beginning on page 64 for a detailed description of the City's total
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Budget to actual statements and schedules are provided in the financial statements for the General Fund
and Gasoline Tax Fund, the only funds with legally adopted budgets. Columns are provided for both the
original adopted budget as well as the final budget. These budgets are followed by columns for actual
expenditures and for variances between the final budget and actual expenditures.

The operations of the City of Montgomery are a dynamic business that requires strict budget control
throughout the year. An adequate budget balance must be available for the particular line item for which
a payment request has been submitted. If the budget balance is not adequate, the payment will be

rejected. A payment will be approved after a budget adjustment for that cost center has been processed.

General Fund

For the year ended September 30,2014, actual revenues were less than budgeted revenues by $569,908.
The primary reasons for the variance are as follows:

o Fines and forfeitures had a variance of $3,238,158 or 38.6% due to a reclassification of
$2,267,381 of revenues restricted for Municipal Court Corrections and Municipal Court Judicial
Administration to special revenue funds.

o Intergovernmental revenues remained sluggish due to the decline in federal and state funding
which was directly attributable to a slow growing economy.

o Taxes had a variance of $665,899 or 0.5Yo due to a decline in property taxes.

For the year ended September 30,2014, actual total expenditures were less than budgeted expenditures
by $6,956,434 or 3.7Yo in the following departments:

o General Government actual expenditures were less than budgeted expenditures by $963,183.
o Public Works actual expenditures were less than budgeted expenditures by $1,712,793.
o Public Safety actual expenditures were less than budgeted expenditures by $2,855,252.
o Cultural and Recreational actual expenditures were less than budgeted expenditures by

$1,175,970.

Listed below are the primary reasons for variances in the General Fund:

o Efficient utilization of resources accounted for actual expenditures being less than budgeted
expenditures.

o Departmental budgets were reduced by a mandated budget cut of l-2%.
o Personnel costs were less than budgeted amounts due to the inability to fill and maintain

budgeted personnel positions and through attrition. Non-essential positions were not filled in
2014.
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Economic Factors and Year 2014

The following factors were considered in preparing The City of Montgomery's Budget for Fiscal Year
20r4:

Montgomery's unemployment rate decreased from 7.0% in 2013 to 6,4% in 2014. The
unemployment rate was 0.60lo less than the previous year.

The City of Montgomery is currently the second largest city in the state due to continued
population growth. The occupancy rate of the City's Downtown District continues to have

steady growth.
r The City's Downtown Riverfront Development continues to create economic growth through

tourism.
Sales tax revenue increased in 2014 over the previous year. It is anticipated that sales tax
revenue will continue to increase slowly as the economy improves.
Continued increases in industrial and residential development.

At September 30, 2014, fund balance in the General Fund was 517,673,543. The City of Montgomery
did not appropriate any fund balance from the 2014 fund balance for spending in the 2015 fiscal year

budget. The City will continue to provide services to its citizens, keep a level of essential staff to
provide services to the community and pay for one-time expenditures for capital needs from the funds
appropriated in the 2015 budget.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of The City of Montgomery's finances
for anyone with an interest in the economic well-being of the City. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed

to The Office of the Finance Director, 103 North Perry Street, Montgomery, Alabama 36104.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI4

Primary Government Component Unit

Governmental
Activities

Business-type

Activities Total
Public
Library

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Internal balances

Receivables

Inventories

Prepaid items

Assets held for resale

Note receivable

Mortgage receivable

Lease receivable

Warrants receivable

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land

Construction in progress

Collections

Capital assets net of accumulated
depreciation:

Buildings and system

Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Infrastructure

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Defened charge on refunding

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Retainage payable

Unearned revenue

Funds held in escrow

Noncurrent liabi lities :

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for:

Public works

Public safety

Cultural and recreational

Capital projects

Nonexpendable

Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

21,539,215

3,380,382

20,546,534
1,186,772

14,344

21,931

1,204,020

1,612,024

2,864,912

1,478,664

54,534,679

13,069,414-

l2g ,346,416
50,202,159

32,912,330

94,027,692

1,262,473
(3,380,382)

2l 3,888

462,925

| "047 ,942

22"801,688

20,76A,422

1,649,697

14,344

21,931

| ,204,020
1,612,024

2,864,912

1,478,664

55,582,561

13,069,414-

150,759,729

5 1,619,033

36,257,648

94,027,692

467,661

7 5,992

10,41 8,g2;

1,698,150

236,003

21,413,313

1,416,874

3,345,318

427 ,941,428 25,782,351 453,723,779 12,896,731

9,224,686 9,224,686

9,224,686 9,224,686_

20,363,447

152,912

223,146

2,037 ,721

20,627,425

435,057,634

19,779,615

| 52,912

192,289

2,037,721

20,61 1,408

434,596,545

583,826

30,857

16,017

461,089

59,61 8

477,370,490 1,091 ,789 478,462,279 59,618

201,285,470

4,672,714

2,392,966

1,590,318

3,049,561

(2s3,1?!40;),

$ (40,204,376)

27 ,223,447 228,508,917

4,672,714

2,392,966

1,590,318

3,049,561

(2,s31895) (zss 
3728 '2e:)

$ 24,690,562 s (15,513,814)

-@--

12,353,078

145,28;

102,21 8

236,531

$ 12,837,113

--

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
STATEMENT OF ACTTVITTES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI4

, Progflln Feve.nue-s - .,
Operating Capital

Function/Programs

Primary Government
Governmental activities :

General government
Public works
Public safety
Cultural and recreational
Interest on long-term debt

fotal govemmental activities

Business-type activities :

Montgomery Area Transit System

Montgomery Zoo
Municipal Golf
*"*}H[HT,:il, 

activities

Iotal primary government

Component Unit
Public Library

Expenses,

81,7 66,281
44,67 4,284
94,292,962
33,624,299

Charges for
Services

Grants and
Contributions

Grants and
Contributions

17,946,132
18,332,989

822,692
1,482,858

5,324,050
2,015,122
7,460,885

312,086

5,327 ,547
6,7 63,867

160,1 l9
59,914

13.216.304

267 .57 4 130 38 584.67 | l5 tt2 143 12,311,447

2,508,276
4,236,650
1,964,366

1,169,7 48
2,552,954
1,209,7 69

718.214 842.319

9.427 s06 77 4,790

s 277 ,001,636 44,359,461 l5,l 12,143 12,311,447

s 4,980,95 I $ 142,274 $
-* ' : 

tz'-'-

General Revenues
Sales taxes

Property taxes

Business license taxes

Motor fuel taxes

Lodging taxes

Rental taxes

Tobacco taxes

Alcoholic beverage taxes

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs

Investment earnings
Miscellaneous revenue

Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position

Net position as originally stated

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

Net position - beginning, as restated

Net position - ending

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

251.816 $ 137.000
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Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

Primary Government Componelt Unit
Public
Library

(
q,t

Total

$ (53,168,5 52)
(17,562,306)
(85,849,266)
(31,7 69,441)
( 13,216,304\

(201,565,869)

$ (53,168,5 52)
(17,562,306)
(85,849,266)
(31,7 69,441)

. (13,21p,304\

(201,565,q69)

( I ,33 8,528)
( 1,683 ,696)

(7 54,597)

( I ,33 8,529)
( 1,693,696)

(7 54,597)
124.105 124.105

(201,565,869)

(3,652,716\ , . (1,652,716>

(3,652,716) (205 ,2t8,585)

(4,449,861)

95,77 5,104
28,963,542
33,899p42

5,154,87 |
g,l I 9,7 56

3,5 5 8,689
1,494,478

296,796
187,221

l0,l7g
7,250,519

(2,786,35 I )

181,924,736

( 19,641,133\

(17,214,182)

(3?349,061\

(20,563,243\

s (40,204,376)

533

2,786,351

95,77 5,144
28,963,542
33,899,942

5,154,87 |
8,1 I 9,7 56

3,5 5 8,689
1,494,478

296,786
187,221

10,712
7,250,519-

4,224,077
3,372

(qq5,832)

25,556,394

4,227,449

, (222,412\

13,059 ,525

2.786"884 184,711,620

(29,506,965)

8,342,212

(3?34?,061\

25 "556.394 4.993.15 I 13.059 .525

24.690.562 $ (15,5 13,814\ $ 12,837, l_13

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FTJNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI4

General
Fund

Capital Project Debt Service

Fund Fund

Miscellaneous Other Total

Special Revenue Governmental Governmental

Fund Funds Funds

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables

lnventories

Prepaid items

Assets held for resale

Notes receivable

Due from other funds

Mortgage receivable

Lease receivable

Warrants receivable

Advances to other funds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Retainage payable

Due to other funds

Funds held in escrow

Unearned revenue

Advances from other funds

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue - long term receivables

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Nonspendable:

Assets held for resale

Inventories

Long-term receivables

Prepaid items

Restricted:

Capital projects

Debt service

Emergency communications center

Intergovernmental

Landfill
Municipal Court Corrections

Other

Riverfront Stadium

Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

$ 8,720,858 $ 1,693,157

8,581 103,767

7ll,775

:ffi@
J l,!57,922

$ 
: 

t 4s5,7e4-

. t ,319,62;

. 2,400

J

- 

,1,7T,917

4,343,576 490,81,3

$ 4,238,866

13,339,222

1,186,772

10,731

700,000

3,641,683

- 3,gg7.,4g;

$ 27,114,757

s 2,133,457

203,403

42;

504,020

1,357 ,g2;-

$ 4,lrr 2T,

--

$ 2,109,921

2,864,912
1,478,664

J
$ 6,453,497

--

s 8,451,804

446,442

46;
21,931

:

65,813

J
$ 8,986,456:

$ 4,313,968

5,672,991

1,43;

188,2S;

-

$ 10,176,678:

$ 1,251,846

40,564

3,300,156

6,323

189,889

- , l '2?8'760-
6,027,538

1,430

1,745,493

1,578,64;
838,079

44,29;

56,107

1,210,093

( I ,325,010)

_ 4,149_,1!0

$ 10,176,678

-

$ 21,248,016

19,662,058

1,186,772

13,047

21,931

1 ,204,020
3,641,683

1,612,024

2,864,912
|,478,664

-. . 3'99J'!8?

$ 56,930,610

--

$ 12,121,655

152,912

3,300,156

2,037,721

192,289

, 1,238,760

, -,r,2,943,!93,

, . 6*492,'1!l

,6,29j!,?l! ,

2l,931
1,186,772

5,101,503

13,047

2,446,650

2,109,921
1,578,649

5,715,597

1,642,477

44,299

70,320

I ,210,093
19J5.3,54.7

,31,,594,899_

$ 56,930,610
@

-

-

J ,1,457,9,22 4,3,432?79

1,186,77;
4,697,483

10,731

11,778,557

17,673?513

$ 27,114,757

404,020

420

539,936

. - ,443:/6

$ 4,199,222

-

2,109,921

2,109,921

$ 6,453,497

-

490.813

2l,931

46;

16l,22l

4,877,51;
1,642,477

a,2l;-

J
6,717,826

$ 8,986,456

-

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FI.INDS
TO TI{E STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30. 2OI4

Differences in amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position.

Total fund balances - governmental funds $ 31,594,806

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in
the governmental funds. 374,092,630

Long-term receivables are not available to pay for
current-period expenditures and, therefore, are

deferred in the governmental funds. 6,292,311

The Internal Service Fund is used by management to charge

the costs of employee medical insurance, workers
compensation insurance, and general liability insurance to
individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the Internal
Service Fund are included in governmental activities in
the Statement of Net Position. (2'961,146\

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental

funds. Balances at September 30,2014 were:

Bonds, warrants, leases, and notes payable $307,524,841
Deferred charge on refunding (9,224,686)

Unamortized net premiums 5,499,741

Unamortized net discounts Q2,606)
Accrued interest 2,997,929

Compensated absences 18,890,531

Retirement and disability benefits 8,778,690

Postemployment benefit plans other than pensions 107,302,072

Landfill closure and postclosure costs 7,244,684

other 241,781

Total long-tenn liabilities

Net position of governmental activities

(449,222,977)

$ (40?0!,3,7 6)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR T}IE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2OI4

General
Fund

Capital Project Debt Service

Fund Fund

Miscellaneous Other Total

Special Revenue Governmental Governmental

Fund Funds Funds

REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses and permits

Intergovernmental revenues

Charges for services

Fines and forfeitures

Interest

Mi scel laneous revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:

General government

Public works

Public safety

Cultural and recreational

Intergovernmental

Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal

lnterest

Debt issuance cost

Total expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over (under)

expenditures

OTHER FINANCTNG SOURCES (USES)

hoceeds from sale of capital assets

Transfers in
Transfers out

Capital leases

Issuance of refunding bonds

Issuance of notes payable

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES. ENDING

(19,133,900) (19,931,334)

139,813,764

41,882,072

5,004,904

17,395,008

5,140,592

8,636

3,705,784

212,950,760 -

41,335,604

28,777,686

76,744,321

28,403,835

4,939,274

486,641

-

180,687,361

_ 32,263,399,

265,551

7,225,000
(41,854,684)

4,643,947

:

(29,720,186)

,,*tr"

1,087,133

449,767

49;
1,391,564

2,928,957

3,519,365

2,1 18,685

391,008

6ll,92l
5,694,028

3,696,812

6,010,001

2!,8;

.22,062,857

2,068,27; 
-

1,050

4,843

10,707,930

11,297,574

J
22,005,504

,,rr^,"t -Ar\*
n-

1,494,478

1,768,389

439,642-

769,176

2,054,984

92,468

21,888,195

2,267,381

1,073t417 -
-, ,27,376,445_

8,605,355

6,638,278

6,044,486

643,825

5,540,55;

-
__. - 3,qJ7,g?0 -, 27,472,503

1,453,7 55 (96,058)

143,363,226

41,974,540

3l ,816,898
18,284,417

7,407,973

1 0,1 79

6,944,784

249,802,017

54,133,890

39,338,940

93,226,748

29,816,021

5,731,528

9,536,571

21,657,205

11,784,215

21,,03J_

255,246,155

., (5,444,118)

1,663,452

41,383,047

(54,267,557)

4,643,947

6,042,599

778,019

243,507

(5,200,631 )

36,795,437

673,566

1,804,291

46,933

156,440

37,500

299,200

1,030,365

5,720,593
(1,603,789)

6,042,599

20,82837;
367,536

1,451,502
(4,313,032)

6,157,58;
(6,496,052-)

778,019

343,490

-

ll,lg9,768 20,828,371 . _(2,493,994)

(7,944,132) 897 ,037 (1,040,239)

. 15,130,330 8,888,508 .1,212,884 _,,7,758{65 - .3,8!f5,659-

g t7,673,543 S 944,376 $ 2,109,921 g 6,717,826 $ 4,149,140 $ 31,594,806::::::::

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
RECONCILIATION OF T}IE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CIIANGES IN FUND
BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO TI{E STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR TI{E YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2014

Differences in amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities.

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (5,200,631)

Capital outlay, reported as expenditures in governmental funds,

is shown as capital assets in the Statement of Net Position.

Donations of capital assets increase net assets in the Statement of
Net Position but do not appear in the governmental funds because

they are not financial resources.

16,7 69,453

2,679,872

Depreciation expense on governmental capital assets included
in the governmental activities in the Statement of Activities. (24,188,176)

The net effect oftransactions involving the sale, disposal and transfer of
capital assets is to decrease net position in the Statement of Net Position. (6,291,598)

Revenues are reported in the funds when there is an established claim
to the resources and the resources are available to finance current
expenditures. Revenues are reported in the Statement of Activities
when there is an established claim with no availability criterion. The

funds report revenue unavailable in prior periods as current year revenue. (696,734)

Loan proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental

funds; however, issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the

Statement of Net Position.

Refunding bond proceeds

Notes payable proceeds

Capital lease financing
Total proceeds (l 1 ,464,565)

(Continued)

$ 6,042,599

778,019

4,643,947

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FI-IND
BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FI.JNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTryITIES (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2OI4

Repayment of long-term liabilities is reported as an expenditure in
governmental funds, but a reduction of long-term liabilities in the

Statement of Net Position.

General obligation bonds

Capital leases

Other
Total repayments

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore,

are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Compensated absences

Retirement and disability benefits

Accrued interest

Postemployment benefit plans other than pensions

Landfill closure and postclosure costs

Additional expenses

$ 15,952,612

5,704,593

241,781

$ 21 ,898,986

(87,446)

1,208,473
(42,612)

I 3,05 3,682
324,065

(14,456,162)

Governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts,

and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these

amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of
Activities.

Amortization 0,453,663)

Transfer ofcapital assets from business-type activities increases net

position in the Statement of Net Position but do not appear in the

governmental funds because they are not financial resources. 22'224

The internal service fund is used by management to charge the

costs of employee medical insurance and general liability insurance

to individual funds. The net income (expense) of certain activities of
the internal service fund is reported with governmental activities.

Change in net position of governmental activities

2,739,861

$ (19,641,133)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FI.IND
FOR TI{E YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2OI4

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
(Nqgativq)

$ (665,899)
166,291

(3 12,890)
886,427

(3,238,I 5 8)
636

2,593,685

Original

$ 140, 479,663
41,71 5,781
5,3 17 ,794

16,508,5 8 I
8,37 8,750

8,000
1,1 12,099

$ 140, 479,663
41,71 5,781

5,3 I 7 ,794
16,508,5 8l

8,37 8,750
8,000

1,1 12,099

$ 139,8 r3,7 64
41,882,072

5,004,904
17,395,008
5,140,592

8,636
3,7 05 ,7 84

Final
REVENUES

Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Interest
Miscellaneous revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:

General government:
Council
Mayor and cabinet
City Clerk
Customer Service
Development
Finance department
Fleet management
Information techno I o gy
Insurance
Investigations
Legal Department
Miscellaneous activities
Municipal Court
Parking Management
Payments to government agencies
Planning
Retirement
Risk Management

Total general government

213,520,668 213,520,668 212,950,7 60 (569,908)

340,045
87 5,804
303 ,227
282,360
520,048

3,7 13,107
3,682,500
3,259,165
1,592,000

292,354
83 5 ,442

10,295,404
2,687 ,106

8l 5 ,277
4,810,524
1,865 ,478

l0,l 25,813
439,123

333,445
839, rl2
303 ,227
282,360
520,048

3,593,107
3,682,500
2,964,165

415,888
292,354
83 5 ,442

9,8 55,202
2,687 ,106

815 ,277
4,7 58,024
1,871,209
7 ,81 1 ,198

439,123

318,947
7 52,489
266,160
253,685
395 ,079

3,215,637
3,369,5 53
2,667,706

415,888
228,570
7 40,022

1 1,1 69,935
2,526,714

659,432
4,555,3 03
1,7 43,844
7,654,1 89

402,451

14,498
86,623
37,067
28,67 5

124,969
377,470
312,947
296,459

63,784
95,420

( I,3 14,733)
160,392
155,845
202,721
r27,365
157,009
36,672

46,734,777 42,298,787 41,335,604 963, I 83

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FI.IND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)
GENERAL FUND
FOR TI{E YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2OI4

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
(Negative)

149,140
93,81 8

184,7 62
586,772
559,080
139,221

Original

$ 1,983,878
2,419,53 5

1,800,300
7 ,815,947

13,934,719
2,728,107

$ r,791 ,871
2,419,53 5

1,800,300
7 ,8r5,947

13,934,719
2,728,107

$ 1,642,731
2,325,717
1,615,538
7 ,229,17 5

13,37 5,639
2,588,886

Final

Public Works:
Engineering Department
Inspections Division
Landfill Division
Maintenance
Sanitation Department
Traffi c Engineering Department

Total public works

Public Safety:
Emergency Management
Fire Department
Police Department

Total public safety

Cultural and Recreational:
Building maintenance
Library
Museum
Parks and recreation
Public information and external affairs

Total cultural and recreational

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest

Total debt service

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over
expenditures

30,682,486 30,490,479 28,777,686 1,712,793

357,573
33,128,250
46,292,250

357,573
33,1 0l ,7 50
46,140,250

278,951
3r,723,726
44,7 41 ,644

78,622
1,378,024
1,398,606

79,77 8,073 79,599,573 7 6,7 44,321 2,855,252

5,05 5,500
3,201 ,500
3,202,000

17,524,500
821,000

5,05 5,5 00
3,153,683
3,202,000

17 ,419,622
7 49,000

4,828,677
2,77 4,7 52

3,061,673
17 ,149,112

589,621

226,823
378,931
140,327
270,510
159,379

29,804,500 29,579,805 28,403,835 l,l7 5,97 0

4,960,161
714,990

4,960,161
7 14,990

4,939,27 4
486,641

20,887
228,349

5,67 5,15 I 5,67 5,1 5 1 5,425,91 5 249,236

192,67 4,987 187 ,643,795 I 80,687,361 6,956,434

24,845,681 25,87 6,873 32,263,399 6,386,526

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES _

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)
GENERAL FUND
FOR TFIE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30.2OI4

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
(Negative)

$ (234,449)

(3,7 52,8, il
143,947

Original Final

OTHER FINANCING
sorrRcEs (usES)

Proceeds from sale of assets

Transfers in
Transfers out
Capital leases

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net changes in fund balance

FUND BALANCES - BBGINNING

FUND BALANCES - ENDING

(20,845,681) (25,87 6,873) Q9,720?186) ,(3,843,3 l3),

2,543,213

15,130,330

2,543,213

$ 500,000

7,225,000
(33 ,070,681)

4,500,000

$ 500,000

7,225,000
(3 8,101,873)

4,500,000

$ 265,551

7,225,000
(41,854,684)

4,643,947

15,130,330 15,130,330

$ 15,130,330 $ 15,130,330 $ 17 ,673,543 $ 2,543,213

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRTETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI4

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Inventories
Prepaid items

Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS

Capital assets:

Land
Buildings and system
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital net assets, net of
accumulated depreciation

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Claims payable
Unearned revenue
Funds in escrow
Due to other funds
Compensated absences

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Advances from other funds
Compensated absences

Total noncurent liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NBT POSITION
Investment in capital assets

Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

257,569 95 5.03 5

344,436 38,165
20,198,149 5,932,642

48,341 5,022,575
9, 107,480 1,572,835

(??3 I p,2?3\ (6,e0q,16J )

20,3 88,J.13- 5,660,q16

20,645,682 q,q I q,091

249,527

Montgomery
Area

fralsit 9ystem ,

$

6,635
250,934

Montgomery
Zoo

Other
Enterprise

Funds

Total
Enterprise

Funds

Governmental
Activities -

Internal
Service Fund

629,530
1 95,1 87

130,3 l8

632,943
12,066
91,673

1,262,473
213,888
462.925

291,199
884,47 6

1,297

665,341
213,83 I

1,565,024
397,356

(1,666,?!4\

1,17,5?78.,

1,901:.?60_

150,466

30,s5;

341,527
451

. 11939,286

1,047,942
26,344,622
6,635,940

11,077 ,67 |
( 1.7,882?7?8)

. 27 ??23144!
29,162,733

583,826

30,857

34r,52;
16,017

l,l7 6,972

- , l.,lJ 6,972

1,526,469
2,991,361

42;

726,682

I 83.83 3

249,5?7

15.566

r99.399

-

523,3,01 , 9,72122,7

1,189,145
339,145

339,142

53 8,544

_ 121,94+

- 12,1,94!

645,245

$ 6,07 6,547 $ 1,256,715

---

I,1 89,1 45

461,082.

4,419,?50

1,569,579

.. \,650,23A,, l;.:6%5?9--

.2,622,491 _- 1,98,7,82,8

27 ,223,447
(,683,171) - - (4,8103816)

26,540,272 $ (4,810,856):

( I,849,71 0)

$ 24,690,562

-

l, !.89,145.
l,$9,q72

20,388,1 l3
(l,lgl,l03L

$ 19,207 ,010

5,660,056
416,491

1,175,278

, 8L4,17

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities
related to Enterprise Funds

Net position of business-type activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
STATEMENT OF REVENI.JES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR TI{E YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2014

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for goods and services

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Cost of sales and services
Administration
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

OPERATING LOSS

NONOPERATING REVENUES
(EXPENSES)

Loss on sale of capital assets

Interest income
Transfer of capital assets to

governmental activities

Loss before contributions and transfers

Capital contributions
Transfers in
Transfers out

Change in net position

NET POSITION . BEGINNING

NET POSITION. ENDING

Business-tYPe Activities -
Enterprise Funds Governmental

Activities'
Area Montgomery Enterprise Enterprise Internal

Transit System Zoo Funds Funds Scrvice Fund

$ 1,169,748 $ 2,552,954 $ 2,052,088 $ 5,774,790 s 28,827,625

1,t69,748 2,552,954 2,052,088 5,774,790 28'827,625

- 135,887 340,937 476,824

r.184.462 3,670,82s 2,208,611 7,063,898 36,376,820

1,307,812 288,642 57,540 1,653,994 J
2,492,274 4,095,354 2,607,088 9,194,716 36,376,820

(r,322,526) (1,542,400) (555,000) (3,4t9,926) (7,549,195)

( 16,002) (3,667)
361 172

1,125,6g; 2,968)2;
(159.550) (159,550)

(t9,669)
533

Q2 221\ (22 224\

(577 ,052) (3,461,286) (7 ,549,1 95)(1,338,528)

439,438

( 1,545,706)

1,403,000

3 89,086

867,629

$ 1,256,715

--

10,075 ,934

(652,710) 2,526,739

(7,33 7.595 )

$ (4,81_0,856)

(899,090) (t42,706)

$ 19,207 ,010 $ 6,07 6,547

---

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities
related to Enterprise Funds

Change in net position of business-type activities

(217 122\

$ (865,p3 2)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FLINDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI4

Busi ness-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds Governmental

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers and users

Receipts from interfund services
provided

Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Payments for interfund services used

Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfers to other funds
Transfers from other funds
Net cash payments from other funds

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of capital assets

Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Net cash used by capital and related

financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Interest income

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS -
BEGINNING

$ 2,452,648 $ 2,080,665 $ 5,703,685 $

( l,5ss,so i) ( l,600,90;) $,258,736)
(2,013 ,437) (83 9,686) (2,85 3 ,123)

(211,83 l) (6q,4J6) . (278,26!\

Montgomery
Area

Trapsit System

$ 1,170,372

(1,069,26; 
-)

Montgomery
Zoo

Other
Enterprise

Funds

Total
Enterprise

Funds

Activities -
Internal

Service Fund

28,827,97 5

(37,033,030)

l0l,105 (l,36lrlpl) (426,365,\ (1,q86,141\ (8,2q:,055)

(132,486)
4,10J

43s,43; r,4o3,od '1li?,?i3' 
,lli3,ii?' ro,o75, %;

(53,11,029) --(281,482) - (592,493\ . 9,40-8,,001), (2,526,739)

(94,591)

(10,615)
4,101

l,l2l,5 l8 373,645 1,409,572 7 ,54,9,195 .

(92,640) (29,231)

(6,5 14) 02,640\ Q9.231) ( I 28-385)

361 t72 533

- 961,472 
, - 714,,722

(331 ,942) (8t,779) (413 ,721)

1,67 6,194

(655,860)

947,059

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS .
ENDING S 

= _;
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:

Transfer of capital assets to
governmental activities $

$ 629,530 $ 632,943 g 1,262,473 $ 291,199

--€

+-#--

$ $ (22,224) $ (22,224) $

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERYO ALABAMA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI4

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds Governmental

_l

Montgomery
Area

Transit Svstem

Montgomery
Zoo

Other
Enterprise

Funds

Total
Enterprise

Funds

Activities -
Internal

Service Fund

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING
LOSS TO NET CASH PROVIDED
(USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating

loss to net cash used by operating
activities:

Depreciation expense

(Increase) decrease in receivables
Increase in inventories
Decrease in prepaid items
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable

and accrued expenses
Increase in defened revenue
Increase in funds in escrow
Decrease in claims payable

Increase in compensated absences

Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

$ (1,322,5?6\. $ (1,142,400) $. (5q5?090) $ (3,419,926) $ (Z,Sg2,t?St

- 1,307,812
623

(43,443-)

158,639

288,642
( 100,306)

(25,41l_)

551

57,540
4,704

(6,087)

44,836
23,87 5_

3,7 67

1,653 ,994
(94,979)
(7 4,941_)

221,218
23,87 5-

4,3 l8

(+to,zoi)

(l,297)

( 19,840)

350
( I 64,805 )

|,423,631 l8l,2l9 128.63 5 _. 1,73J,185, , (655,p60.)

$ (1,361,181) $. (4261365) @ $ (8,205,051)

-:k-

l0l,105

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF MOhITGOMERY, ALABAMA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUND
DECEMBER 3I,2OI3

Employees'
Retirement

System, 
.

ASSETS

Investments, &t fair value:

United States Government Securities

Corporate bonds and debentures

Common stocks

Mutual funds

Partnerships

Cash equivalents

Total investments

Cash

Receivables:

Accrued interest and dividends
Contributions receivable

Other receivables

Total receivables

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

NBT POSITION HBLD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS

$ 30, 164,173

45,147 ,790
4l,454,039

199,544,349

24,723,369

3,429,232

344,462,952

943,3 89

1,3 I 4,47 0

606,445

22,062

1,942,977

347 ,249,3 18

189,406

$ 347 ,059,912

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I,2OI3

ADDITIONS

Investment income:

Interest

Dividends
Net appreciation in fair value of investments

Less: Investment expense

Net investment income

Contributions:
Employers

Employees

Total contributions

Other additions:
Interest on reinstatement contributions

Total other additions

Total additions

DEDUCTIONS

Benefit payments

Withdrawals and refunds

Administration expenses

Total deductions

Change in net position

Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

Employees'
Retirement

System

$ 1,630,599

6,83 9,844
30,47 5,408

38,945,85 I

67 6,895

38,268,956

13,620,301

5,904,1 08

19,524,409

11,844

11,844

57,805,209

3 1,195 ,142
1,400,778

3,695

32,599,615

25,205,594

32r,854,3 l8

$ 347 ,059,912

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI4

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOI]NTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

The City of Montgomery (the City) was incorporated under the laws of the State of Alabama in 1837 and

operates under an elected Mayor-Council form of government as required by State of Alabama Legislative
Act No. 73-618 approved August 28,1973. As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America, these financial statements present the City (the primary government) and its
component units. Blended component units are, in substance, part of the primary government's operations,

even though they are legally separate entities. Thus, blended component units are appropriately presented

as funds of the primary government. Each discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate

column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the City.
It is included in the City's reporting entity because of the significance of its operational or financial
relationship with the City.

Blended Component Units. The Solid Waste Disposal Authority of the City of Montgomery is governed

by a board comprised of the City's mayor and two council members. The Authority was created to
facilitate a municipal solid waste feedstock supply agreement and a support agreement between the City
and a third party. The Authority is included in the Miscellaneous Special Revenue Fund and does not issue

separate financial statements.

The Emergency Communications District of the City of Montgomery was formed by the City for the

purpose of acquiring, developing, maintaining, and operating the emergency communications system within
the City. The City receives substantially all the benefit of all of the District's public safety activities. The

District is included as a Special Revenue Fund within the nonmajor governmental funds and does not issue

separate financial statements.

Discretely Presented Component Unit. The Montgomery City-County Public Library (the Library) is
fiscally dependent on the City because the Library's operational and capital budgets are approved by the

City Council. In addition, the Library is prohibited from issuing bonded debt without the approval of the

City Council. The members of the governing board of the Library are jointly appointed by the City Council

and Montgomery County. The Library is presented as a governmental fund type. Complete financial

statements of the individual component unit can be obtained directly from its administrative office.

The City Council is also responsible for appointing the members of the boards of other organizations, but

the City's accountability for these organizations does not extend beyond making the appointments' The

City Council appoints the board members of the Water Works and Sanitary Sewer Board, the Housing
Authority, the Airport Authority, and the Industrial Development Board. Financial information for these

entities is not reflected in the Citv's financial statements.
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1. SUMMARY OX' SIGNIFICAI\T ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The basic financial statements consist of the government-wide financial statements and fund financial
statements. Both sets of statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities'
Government-wide financial statements are comprised of the statement of net position and the statement of
activities and reports information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary govemment and its

component unit. For the most part, the effect of inter-fund activity has been removed from these

statements. The exception to this is interfund services provided and used which are eliminated in the

consolidation process.

Governmental activitieg which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are

reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for
support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from the legally separate component

unit.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or

segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues are classified into three categories: charges for services,

operating grants and contributions, and capital grants and contributions. Charges for services refer to direct

recovery from customers for services rendered. Grants and contributions refer to revenues restricted for
specific programs whose use may be restricted further to operational or capital items. The general revenues

section displays revenue collected that help support all functions of government and contribute to the

change in the net position for the fiscal year.

The fund financial statements follow and report additional and detailed information about operations for

major funds individually and nonmajor funds in the aggegate for governmental and fiduciary funds. A
reconciliation is provided that converts the results of governmental fund accounting to the government-

wide presentations.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus

and the accrual basis of accounting as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements.

Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year received or when an

enforceable legal claim exists, whichever comes first. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue

as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met'

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement

focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both

measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the

current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities ofthe current period, considered to be sixty days

for property taxes and ninety days for all other revenue. Expenditures generally are recorded when a
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expendifureso as well as

expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgmentso are recorded only when payment

is due.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICAI\T ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period

are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues ofthe cunent fiscal

period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received

by the City.

The following are reported as major governmental funds:

General Fund - This is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial

resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another

fund.

Capital Project Fund - Accounts for the acquisition and construction of major capital

facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds and tnrst funds.

Debt Service Fund - Accounts for the reserves allocated and payments made for principal

and interest on general obligation debt of the City.

Miscellaneous Special Revenue Fund - Accounts for various intergovernmental revenues to

be used solely for City improvements.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

Montgomery Area Transit System Fund - Accounts for the operations of the public

transportation system with the City.

Montgomery Zoo Fund - Accounts for the operations of the City-owned and operated

zoo.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Fund - Accounts for the operations of the self-insured medical

insurance plan, workers' compensation plan, and the self-insured liability insurance plan

provided tb other departments of the City on a cost reimbursement basis. The liability
insurance plan includes general liability, public offtcials' liability, and law enforcement

offrcers' liability.

Pension Trust Fund - Accounts for the activities of the Employees' Retirement System

of the City of Montgomeryo Alabama, which accumulates resources for pension benefit

payments to qualified City employees.

Proprietary Funds - Accounts for the operations of Municipal Golf, Montgomery River
Boai, and Food Services. As of October l,20l3,the activities and capital assets of Food

Services were transferred to the General Fund.
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l. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financiul Statement Presentation (Continued)

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in

connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the

enterprise funds and of the internal service fund are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating

expenses for the enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services,

administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this

definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments

with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Re c eiv ab le s and Pay ables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of
the fiscal year are refened to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of inter-fund

loans) or 'iadvances tolfrom other funds" (i.e., the noncurrent portion of inter-fund loans). Any residual

balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the

government-wide financial statements as "internal balances."

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are reported as nonspendable fund

balance in applicable govemmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are

not available expendable financial resources.

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of any applicable allowance for uncollectibles.

City property taxes are levied by the County Commission at its first regular meeting in February of each

year based on the property on record as of the preceding October l. The taxes are due the following
October I and delinquent after December 31. In accordance with the non-exchange transactions provision

of GASB Statement No. 33, a receivable for taxes is recorded when an enforceable legal claim has arisen or

when resources are received, whichever is first. That date for the City is October 1,2013.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICAI\IT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories are stated at cost using the average cost method. Inventories of governmental funds are

recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

lnventories are summarized as follows:

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total

Automotive parts

Fuels and lubricants
Materials and supplies

Tobacco tax stamps

Merchandise and concessions

Police uniforms
Other

Iotals

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs
prepaid items in both government-wide and

1,186,772 462,925 1,649,697

applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as

fund financial statements.

224,686
361,472

360,303

56,7 53

17,498

23,330

142,730

250,9-34

2rr,i_r,

47 5,620
361 ,472
360,303

56,7 53

229,489

23,330

r42,730

P ortfo lio Vul uatio n Met h o d

Investments are reported at fair value. For fixed income securities, fair value is based on quoted market

prices provided by independent pricing services. Securities haded on a national or international exchange

ire valued at the iast reported sales price at current exchange rates. Mortgage related securities are valued

on the basis of future principal and interest payments and are discounted at prevailing interest rates for

similar instruments.

47



CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI4

l. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICAI\T ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,

sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities

columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets, other than infrastructure assets, are

defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 for equipment and S25,000

for land, buildings, and other capital assets with an estimated useful life in excess of trvo years' The

amounts spent for the consfuction or acquisition of infrastructure assets are capitalized and reported in the

government-wide financial statements regardless of their amount.

In the case of the initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets (i.e., those reported by governmental

activities), the City was able to estimate the historical cost for the initial reporting of all infrastructure assets

through backhending (i.e., estimating the current replacement cost of the infrastructure to be capitalized

and using an appropriate price-level index to deflate the cost to the acquisition year or estimated acquisition

year) if the actual cost was not available. As the City constructs or acquires additional capital assets each

period, including infrastructure assets, they are capitalized and reported at historical cost. The reported

value excludes normal maintenance and repairs which are essentially amounts spent in relation to capital

assets that do not increase the capacity or efficiency of the item or extend its useful life beyond the original

estimate. In the case of donations, the City values these capital assets at the estimated fair value of the item

at the date of its donation.

Property, plant, and equipment of the City, as well as the component unit, is depreciated using the straight-

line method over the followine estimated useful lives:

Buildings
Improvements

Equipment
Infrastructure

25 - 99 years

5 - 25 years

3 - 25 years

20 - 50 years

Intangible assets with a finite life are amortized using the straight-line method over the predetermined life.

The City has no intangible assets with a finite life.
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l. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICAI\T AC C OIINTING POLICIES (Contin ued)

Deferred Outflow/InJlows of Reso urces

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred

outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents

a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow
of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City only has one item that qualifies for reporting in this

category. It is the defened charge on refunding reported in the government-wide statement of net position.

A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its

reacquisition price. This amount is defened and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or

refunding debt.

ln addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,

represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an

inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has only one type of item, which arises only under a

modified accrual basis of accounting, that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item,

unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds

report unavailable revenues from long term receivables issued in exchange for the sale of assets. These

amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become

available.

Compensated Absences

The City allows employees to accumulate vacation and sick leave up to certain limits for use in subsequent

periods. Also, employees may elect to receive vacation days up to a certain limit in lieu of overtime pay.

Upon termination of employment, an employee receives payment of accumulated vacation hours and one-

naf of accumulated sicli leave hours up to certain limits at current wage rates. All leave is accrued when

incurred in the government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary frrnd financial statements. A liability for these

amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee

resignations and retirements.

Po stemp loyme nt B e n eftts

The City records a liability in the government-wide financial statements for future benefits due employees

who were covered by the City's previous pension plan and the Trinity Act. These benefits are determined

based on an employee's years of service and the current laborers' hourly rate of pay. The liability is

recorded at the present value of the retirement payments. The retirement and disability benefits liability at

September 30, 201 4 totaled $8,778,690.

The City also records a liability in the government-wide financial statements for future healthcare benefits

for eligible retirees and their spouses. The postemployment benefits other than pension liability at

September 30, 201 4 totaled $107,302,07 2.
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l. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICAI\T ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,

long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental

activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and

discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds

payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well
as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount ofthe debt issued is reported as other

financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld

from the acfual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Lease Obligations

Capital lease obligations are stated at the original fair value of leased assets capitalized, less payments since

the inception of the lease discounted at the implicit rate of interest in the lease. Also, in the year an asset is

acquired by capital lease, the expenditure for the asset and the offsetting amount of the financing source are

reflected in the fund financial statements. Capital lease obligations of proprietary funds and governmental

activities in the government-wide financial statements and the cost of assets so acquired are reflected in the

accounts of those funds and statements.

Fund Balance

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting and

Governmental Fund Type DeJinitions,the City classifies government fund balances as follows:

Nonspendable - Includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because it is not in
spendable form, or for legal or contractual requirements.

Restricted - lncludes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes which are

externally imposed by providers, such as creditors or amounts constrained due to constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed - lncludes fund balance amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes that are

internally imposed by formal action of the government's highest level of decision making authority.
The City Council is the highest level of decision making authority for the City that can, by adoption

of an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal ye{!r, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation
imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another

ordinance) to remove or revise the limitation.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGI\IFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

F und B alance (Contin ued)

Assigned - lncludes spendable fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific
purposes that are neither considered restricted or committed. This indicates that resources in these

funds are, at a minimum, intended to be used for the purposes of that fund. The City Council has, by
resolution, authorized the Mayor to assign fund balance.

Unassigned - lncludes residual positive fund balance within the General Fund which has not been

classified within the above mentioned categories. Unassigned fund balance may also include
negative balances for any governmental fund if expenditures exceed amounts restricted, committed,
or assigned for those specific purposes.

The City considers restricted amounts to have been spent when an expenditure is incuned for purposes for
which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available. The City considers committed, then

assigned amounts to have been spent when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which the amounts

of unrestricted fund balance is available.

Management Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial

statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results

could vary from estimates used.

2. STEWARDSTTTP,COMPLTANCE,AI\DACCOUNTABILITY

Budgetary Informalion

Each year formal budgets are legally adopted and amended as required by the City Council for the General

Fund and State Gasoline Tax Fund. Management can approve transfers within government function
categories only. Transfers of appropriations or revisions between government function categories require

the approval of the Council. The level of budgetary control (i.e., the level at which expenditures may not

legally exceed appropriations) is the government function category level.
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2. STEWARDSIilP, C OMPLIANCE, AI\D AC COUNTABILITY (Contin ued)

B udg et ary Info rmation (C ontin ue d)

In addition to the legally adopted budgets, formal budgetary integration is
conhol device during the year for the Grant Funds and Capital Projects Fund'

Budgets for the governmental funds are adopted on a modified accrual basis

accepted accounting principles (GAAP) insofar as encumbrances are

Reconciliation of expenditures reported in accordance with GAAP and those

the non-GAAP budgetary basis are noted below.

employed as a management

which differs from generally

included with expenditures.
presented in accordance with

Appropriations lapse at the end of the year unless expended or encumbered. Encumbered appropriations

are carried forward.

Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental funds. Encumbrances (e.g., purchase orders,

contracts) outstanding at year-end are reported as restricted or assigned fund balance and do not constitute

expenditures or liabilities of the fund. The only exception to this rule is in the Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General Fund. Encumbrances are

included in the actual expenditure figures on this statement so that a meaningful comparison can be made

with the adopted budget. As of September 30,2014 and 2013 there were no outstanding encumbrances

included in the actual expenditures in this statement and the net change in fund balances (GAAP) agrees to

the net change in fund balances - actual (budget).

As of September 30,2014, the City included the encumbrances as part of governmental fund balances as

follows:

Capital Project Fund

Miscellaneous Special Revenue Fund

Nonmajor funds

Encumbrances as part of governmental fund balances

539,936

17 5,434
1,801,600

2,516,970

Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations

For the year ended September 30,2014,no General Fund functional expenditure category (the legal level of
budgetary control) exceeded appropriations.
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2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND AC C OUNTABILITY (Continued)

Deftcit Fund Equity

Funds with deficit fund balance or net position are as follows:

Nonmajor Governmental Fund:
State Gasoline Tax
ADECA Grant Fund

Department of Justice Grant Fund

Department of Homeland Security

Municipal Court Corrections Fund

Nonmajor Bnterprise Fund :

Montgomery River Boat
Internal Service Fund

Deficit
Amount

$ r,238,759
1,045

2

10,585

7 4,619

88,934

4,810,856

The State Gasoline Tax Fund accounts for proceeds from state gasoline taxes. This deficit is a result of the

City exceeding budgeted costs. The ADECA Grant Fund accounts for funds received from the Alabama

Department of Economic and Community Affairs to be used solely for community development. The

Department of Justice Grant Fund accounts for funds received from the U.S. Department of Justice to be

used solely for public safety. The Department of Homeland Security Grant Fund accounts for funds

received from the U.S. Department of Homeland Security to be used solely for homeland security and

emergency management. The Municipal Court Corrections Fund accounts for funds restricted for the

municipal court and jail. The funds may be used for capital acquisition or operations.

The Montgomery River Boat accounts for the operations of the City's riverboat.

The Internal Service Fund accounts for the operations of the self-insured medical plan, the workers

compensation plan, and the self-insured liability insurance plan provided to other departments of the City
on a cost reimbursement basis. The deficit is a result of actual costs exceeding the amounts charged to
other departments in previous years.

The City's intent is to appropriate funds from the General Fund in order to reduce the deficits.

3. CASH, CASH EQUWALENTS, AI\D TNVESTMENTS

Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk - The City's investment policy requires that bank deposits be fully insured by the

Federal Deposit lnsurance Corporation or be covered under the Security for Alabama Funds Enhancement

(SAFE) Program. The SAFE program is a multiple financial collateral pool administered by the State

Treasurer according to State of Alabama statute.
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3. CASH, CASH EQUfVALENTS, Ai\iD IIYVESTMENTS (Continued)

Investments

The City of Montgomery, Alabama Employees' Retirement System, (the System) engages money managers

to invest plan assets, The System also has an investment consultant who assists the Board of Directors in

monitoring compliance with the System's investment policy and monitoring performance of the money

managers.

lnvestments are subject to certain types of risks including interest rate risk, credit risk (including custodial

credit risk and credit quality), foreign curency risk, and conoentration risk. The following describes those

risks.

Interest Rate Risk - The fair value of fixed-maturity investments fluctuate in response to changes in

market interest rates. Increases in prevailing interest rates generally translate into decreases in fair value of
those instruments. The fair value of interest sensitive instruments may also be affected by the

creditworthiness of the issuer, prepayment options, relative values of alternative investments, and other

general market conditions. Certain fixed maturity investments have call provisions that could result in
shorter maturity periods. The adopted investment policy of the System does not address interest rate risk.

Custodial Credit Risk - For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that an entity will not be able to

recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party if
the counterparty fails. The System's custodian holds all investments of the System in the System's name.

The adopted investment policy of the System does not address custodial credit risk.

Credit Quality - Nationally recognized statistical rating organizations provide ratings of debt securities

quality based on a variety of factors, such as the financial condition of the issuers, which provide investors

with some idea of the issuer's ability to meet its obligations. The adopted investnent policy of the System

does not address credit quality.

Foreign Currency Risk - For an investment, foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange

rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investrnent. The adopted investment policy of the System

does not address foreign currency risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk - The investment policies of the System limit the aggregate amount that can

be invested in each class of investments and any one issuer. The investment policy limits equity

investments to 60%o of the portfolio value, plus or minus 5o/o and limits fixed income investments to 40%o of
the portfolio value, plus or minus 5%. Equity investments are further limited as follows:

Asset Class of Sub Class Target Allocatlqn

r0% -20%
5% - 12%
5% - 12%

19% -29%
4% -8%
0%-9%

Direct Large/Mid Cap Equity
Direct Small Cap Equity
Direct International Equity
Global Multi-Strategy
Satellite Strategies

Private Equity
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3. CASH, CASII EQIIMLENTS, AI\ID INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Inv e stme nts (C o ntin ue d)

Concentration of Credit Risk (Continued)

Equrty investments shall be diversified within the System such that no single issue exceeds 5% of the
portfolio value of the System. Also, the aggregate investment of the System in the equity of any one issuing

corporation shall not exceed 4% ofthe outstanding shares of such corporation.

Fixed income securities are to be diversified so that no one issue shall exceed 5o/o of the total portfolio of
the System, except for U.S. Govemment and Agency securities.

The following table provides information as of December 3I, 2013, concerning the fair value of
investments, interest rate risk, and foreign currency risk:

Investment Maturities at Fair Value (in Years)

Type of Less More Total

Investment Thanl I-5 6-f0 Thanl0 FairValue Cost

Fixed Maturity
GNMA/FNMA/
FHLMCPooIs $ - $ 1,707,041 S 2,744,780 $ 3,154,646 $ 7,606'467 $ 7'590'7rr

REMICS and Other

Govemment Paydowns - 544,363 23,301,908 6,317,902 30,164,173 30,393'824

Corporate Securities 1,025,922 20,978,082 3,1 10,640 7,318,264 32,432,908 30'609,986

I ,396,839 235 ,200 73,621 I ,705,660 | ,67 5,286

Total Fked Maturity _$ 1,025,9n_ _{_65,0?3ff9_ -S n298J03_ -9-U,407 256- 122,805,447 120,229,401

Foreign Bonds

Mutual Bond Fund

Equities

Domestic

International

Total Equities

Mutual Equity Funds

Partnerships*
Cash Equivalents

Total Investments

40,447,241 2,906,175 7,5+2,823 50,896,239 49,959,594

41,454,A39 29,771,014

3,402,7 56 2,564,220

44,856,795 32,335,234

148,648, 109 120,343,611

24,723,369 18,993,7 86

3,429,232 3,429,232

$ 344,462,952 $ 295,331,264

* Partnerships consist of investrnents in limited liability companies whioh invest primarily in common stocks of domestic and

intemational companies.

Cash Equivalents - Cash equivalents consist of money market funds backed by securities of the U.S.

Government.
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3. CASII, CASH EQUfVALENTS, AIYD INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Inv estme nts (C ontin ue d)

MortgageBacked Securities - As of December 3l,20l3,the System had investrnents in mortgage-backed
securities. Embedded prepayment options cause these investments to be highly sensitive to changes in
interest rates. Prepayments by the obligees of the underlying assets reduce the total interest payments to be

received. Generally, when interest rates fall, obligees tend to prepay the mortgages thus eliminating the

stream of interest payments that would have been received under the original amortization schedule. The

resulting reduction in cash flow diminishes the fair value of mortgage-backed securities.

Maturities may differ from contractual maturities (as shown in the table of investments) in mortgage-

backed securities due to prepayment characteristics of these securities. Average life is an acceptable
expected maturity.

Credit Risk - The following table provides information as of December 31, 2013, concerning credit risk:

RATING OF FIXED MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Cost

Fair Value as a

Percent of Total Fixed

Maturity Fair Value
Moody's Ratings $

(Vnless Notqd)

Aaa

AAA(SP)
AA+(SP)
Aaz

AA(SP)
Aa3

AI
A+(SP)

A2

A(sP)
A3

A-(SP)

Baal
BBB+(SP)

Baaz

BBB(SP)

Baa3

BB+(SP)

BI
82
B(SP)

B3

Caal
ccc(sP)
Caa3

Ca

Totals

$ - The Moody's ratings are used when available.
Poor's ratings are denoted by (SP).

Fair

Value

12,444,586

25,191,7 14

30,723,223

392,204

7,755,385

2,196,390

2,235,895

132,019

737,254

5,570,101

3,463,501

1,207 ,57l
4,547,287

1,051,030

5,290,411

9,396,517

4,132,903

3,168,862

1,371,532

3,465

508,962

134,395

152,012

688,834

17 5,536

133,858

12,443,778

24,731,885

3 0,95 3, 1 03

202,541

7 ,493,939
2,17 6,415

2,221,1 I I

114,294

697 ,4ll
5,466,335

3,473,579

628,1 l0
4,173,823

| ,049,126
5,3 28,600

9,232,728

3,907,598

2,997,576

1,307 ,206
3,354

499,596

133,022

165,569

643,885

92,890

9l,927

r0. r 3%

20jt%
2s.42%
032%
6,320/0

t.79%
t.82%
0.rr%
0.60%
454%
2.82%
098%
3.70%
0.86%o

4 ,3lo/o

7 .650/o

3.370/0

2.58%
r.t2%
0.00%
0.4t%
0.n%
0)2%
0,560/0

0.14%
0.1lo/o

122,805,447 120,229,401 100.00%

The Standard & Poor's rating is used when it is available and a Moody rating is not available. Standard &
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4. RECEIVABLES

Receivables as of year-end for the government's individual major funds and nonmajor, internal service, and

fiduciary funds in the aggregate, are considered fully collectible and are recorded at net rcalizable value as

follows:

1,466,481

$ 13,339,222

Montgomery
Zoo

Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds

Employee
Retirement

S!'stem

$ 1,3 I 4,470
6A6.445

22,06;

Montgomery

Area Transit
Svstem

$

6,635

6,635

Total

1,3 I 4,470
606,445

10,429,933

3,624,858

General

Capital Miscellaneous Nonmajor

Project Special Revenue Governmental
Fund Fund Funds

Interest and dividends $

Contributions receivable
Tar<es

Accounts
Intergovernmental

Total receivables

$

g,gg5,35;

1,877,391 446,442
434,583

327

- 5,218,08l

$ 203,4Q3 $ 446,442 $ 5,Q222]_

-

5--

180,272

23,131

Internal
Service

Fund

1 95,1 87

INTBRFITND BALANCES

Interfund balances are generally used to meet
These amounts should be repaid during the next
September 30, 2014 is shown below.

Due tolfrom other funds

Receivable Fund

General

Total

n,06; 854,47;

12,066 $ 1,942,977 $ 22,703,399

---
cash demands necess ary to pay operating expenditures.

fiscal year. The composition of interfund balances as of

Payable Fund Amount

3,300,156

Interest and dividends
Contributions receivable
Ta:<es

Accounts
Intergovernmental

Total receivables

1 95,1 87

-).

Nonmajor Govemmental
Nonmajor Enterprise 341"527

3.641.683
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F

J. INTERFUND BALANCES (Continued)

Advance tolfrom other funds

Receivable Fund

General

Total

Interfund Transfers

Payable Fund

Nonmajor Governmental
Montgomery Area Transit System

Internal Service

Transfer In

Amount

1,238,7 60
l, I 89,145
I,569,578

3,997 ,483

Transfer Out

General
Capital Project Fund
Miscellaneous Special Revenue Fund
Nonmajor Governmental
Nonmajor Enterprise

Totals

Transfer Out

General

Capital Project Fund
Miscellaneous Special Revenue Fund
Nonmajor Governmental
Nonmajor Enterprise

Totals

: $ 3,283'tO1

2,000,000 1,507 ,539
s '22s'000- 

13!,333

$ ?,?25,ooo, $ 5,?29,5?3 $ 1,45 1,502 $ 6,1 57,581

----

General

Capital
Proiect Ful{s

Debt Miscellaneous

Service Special Revenue

Fund Fund

Nonmajor
Governmental

$ 300,200 $ 5,769,327
1,151,302 388,254

$ 19,468,208

64,233
794,878

_ 
r::'ot1

$ 20,82 8,3 7 1

-

Transfer In

-Montgomery
Area

Transit

$ 428,823

10,615

Montgomery
Zoo

Nonmajor Internal
Enterprise Service Total*--

$ 1,403,000 $ 1,125,688 $10,075,934 $ 4l ,854,684
1,603 ,789
4,313,032
6,496,052

159,550

$ 439,438 $ 1,403,00q $ 1, ?5,688 $ t 0,075,94 $ 54,427 W

Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund with collection authorization to the debt service fund as

debt service principal and interest payments become due, and to move unrestricted general fund revenues to
finance various programs that the government must account for in other funds in accordance with budgetary

authorizations, including amounts provided as subsidies or matching funds for various grant programs.
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6. NOTES, WARRANTS, AIID LEASE RECEIVABLE

During 2001, Montgomery Development Corporation, an Alabama non-profit corporation, and

Montgomery Housing Partners, Ltd., an Alabama limited partnership, issued a note payable to the City of
Montgomery through 2021. Annual interest payments are due on the note at a rate of .5oh per year.

Principal of $700,000 is due at maturity.

During 2005, the Montgomery County Commission issued a limited obligation warrant payable to the City
of Montgomery through 2018. The limited obligation warrant of $1,478,664 is recorded as a receivable and

unavailable revenue in the Debt Service Fund.

Annual debt service receivables to maturity for limited obligation warrants are as follows:

Governmental Activities
Principal Interest

Year ending September 30:

20r5
20r6
2017

2018

Totals

346,104

358,77 6

37 6,992
396,792

61,693

46,667

28,272

9,424

1,478,664 146,056

In 2005, the Montgomery County Board of Education entered into a lease agreement with the City of
Montgomery for the construction of public schools. This lease with the Montgomery County Board of
Education is classified as a direct financing lease expiring in the year 2018. The lease receivable of
$2,864,912 is recorded as a receivable and unavailable revenue in the Debt Service Fund.
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6. NOTES, WARRANTS, AND LEASE RECEMBLE (Continued)

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of
September 30,2014, are as follows:

Amount
Year ending September 30:

20t5
20r6
2017

2018

Total minimum lease payments

Less amounts representing interest

Present value of minimum lease payments 2,864,912

During 2014, the City sold various assets held for resale and capital assets in exchange for mortgages

receivable with scheduled principal repayments through 2024. Mortgages receivable and unavailable

revenue of $1,357,922 and $65,813 have been recorded in the Capital Project Fund and Miscellaneous

Special Revenue fund, respectively, as of September 30, 2014. Certain mortgages receivable included in

the Capital Projects Fund totaling $319,360 have terms of repayment dependent upon the completion of a
rehabilitation agreement and other terms related to the occurrence of future events.

790,106

7 85,545

785 ,200
787,044

3,147 ,895
282,983
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7. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30,2014 was as follows:

Prinary Government

Beginning
Balance Increases

-

Decreases Transfers

Ending
Balance

Governmental activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assetso being depreciated:

Buildings and system

Improvements other than buildings

Machinery and equipment

Infrastructure

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and system

Improvements other than buildings

Machinery and equipment

Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

$ 55,33 1,614 $ 237 ,327 $ (l ,034,322) $ - $ 54,534,619

21,904,L,81 I;9q,976, (1.,814,930) .(L-S,4l9rgl3) l-3,0!?,4-l+..

77 ,235,895 I 1,636,303 (2,8+8,352) ( 1g:412,81l) - p7 ,60!rq33 -

188,957,91I 650,678 (3,334,323) 5,645,318

72,296,089 30,336 (21,570) 4,956,692

106,374,161 5,068,771 ( 3,260,864) 1,455,570

538,34 1,461 2,063,237 - 6,470,014

58,793,396 4,202,825 (426,07l)

24,170,914 2,892,705 (4,231)

72,695,506 6,690,472 (2,7 43,209)

19l,919,584

77 ,261,547
109,637,63I

546,87 4,712

3,01 8 62,573,168

- 27,059,388

82,539 7 6,725,308

905,969,622 7,813,022 (6,616;717) _- 18,527,59,!, 925?693,481

442,444,846 10,402,174

598,104,662 24,188,176 (3,173,51l) ., 9!,15J.,, 619,294,8,8! .

307,864,960 06.37 5.154) G,443,246) 18,442,037 306,488 ,597

_$_ 
3p1t09,85s ,$ (4,?38,8?t) q (g,ret?sgp) s ?274 $ 1?4'0t2,6?g
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7. CAPITAL ASSBTS (Continued)

Business-type activities :

Capital assetso not being depreciated:

Land

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and system

Improvements other than buildings

Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and system

Improvements other than buildings

Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Increases Decreases
Beginning
Balance

$ 1,047 ,942

26,329,686

6,634,140

I1,69,109

44,645,926

4,366,893

5,079,315

29,231

1,800

10!155

. 13,2,486

567,434

139,7 5l

(otz,zgg)

(6t2,399)

-

(t4,295)

- (q:,f g9r

.. (107,,781)

(3,018)

Transfers

Ending
Balance

,$ 1,047 ,942

26,344,622

6,635,940

11,077,-670 
,

44,02!,23?

4,931,309

5,219,066

7 ,456,7ll , _ 946,809 (588,62?) (82,539) 7 ,73-?]52

t6,902,9t? 1,653,99+ . (588,62?) c85,I5J) 17,88227?7

27 ,7 43,007 (1 ,521,508

8 28,790,949 S (1,5-21,508) $ (?3,7701 s (npq 9 u43A47

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities :

General Government

Public Works
Public Safety

Cultural and Recreational

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

Business-type Activities :

Montgomery Area Transit System

Montgomery Zoo
Municipal Golf

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities

$ 17 ,191,634
4,026,929

1,614,860

1,354,7 53

24,1 88, 17 6

1,307 ,812
288,642

57,540
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI4

8. SHORT-TERM DEBT

During 2012,the City obtained a $15,000,000 line of credit to support operations pending collection and

receipt of outstanding City revenue. Interest is paid on outstanding balances at the prime rate, as reported
by the Wall Street Journal. The line of credit matured in July 2014 and was not renewed. Short-term debt
activity for the year ended September 30,2014 was as follows:

Beginning Balance

Issues

Redemptions

Ending Balance

10,595,000

During 2013, the City obtained a $5,000,000 line of credit to support operations pending collection and

receipt of outstanding City revenue. Interest is paid on outstanding balances at the prime rate, as reported
by the Wall Street Journal. The line of credit matured in July 2014 and was not renewed. Short-term debt
activity for the year ended September 30,2014 was as follows:

Beginning Balance

Issues

Redemptions

Ending Balance

4,405,000
( 11,q00,.000)-

2,225,000

, (2,?25,000)

In July 2014, the City obtained a $25,000,000 line of credit to support operations pending collection and

receipt of outstanding City revenue. lnterest is paid on outstanding balances at the 30 day LIBOR rate plus

1.95%. The line of credit matures July 16, 2015. There were no draws on the line of credit during 2014.
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9. LONG.TERM DEBT

Long-term debt activity for the year ended September 30,2014, was as follows:

Beginning
Balance Additions Reductions

Governmental activities:
General obligation bonds
Less issuance discounts
Add issuance premiums

Total general obligation
bonds payable

Capital leases

Note payable

Compensated absences

Retirement and disabiliW
benefits

Postemployment benefits
other than pensions

Landfill closure and
postclosure

Governmental activity
long-term liabilities

B usiness-type activities :

Compensated absences

Total long-term debt

40,33 1,648 (36,819,965) 455,207,953 20,61 1,408
#€-

Bnding
Balance

Due Within
One Year

s 297 ,808,863
(34,77 4)

6,,296360

304,070,449

18,956,267

952,351
18,977,977

7,570,217

94,249,390

6,920,619

451,696,27 0

472,788

$ 6,042,599

6,042,599

4,643,947
778,019

1,956,950

1,819,570

24,7 66,498

324,065

20,335

$ (15,952,612)
2,168

.(796,.612)

(t6,7 47,063)

(5,704,593)

(2,044.Jg;)

(61 I,097)

(11,712,816)

287,898,850
(3 2,606)

5,499,7 4l

$ I1,301,147

293,365,985

17,895,621
l ,730,3 70

18,890,53 I

8,778,690

107,302,072

7,244,684

I I ,3 0l,l47

6,506,7 68

148,000

2,044,396

611,097

( I 6.01 ?) 477,106 16,017

_qjgJge,os!- _{_{9,35 t99j_ _u!6,835,e8?I _!-{55,685,05e- _$ 20,6u,42s
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9. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Long-term debt payable at September 30, 2014 is comprised of the following:

General Obligation Bonds

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide for the acquisition and construction of major capital

facilities. Included in the City's outstanding indebtedness are amounts incuned for facilities owned by the

Montgomery County Board of Education. General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the

full faith and credit of the City. The original amount of general obligation bonds issued was $368,654,079
with current outstanding balances as follows:

$32,500,000 Series 2005A General Obligation Bonds due in annual installments of $1,065,000 to

$2,485,000 on 4-01-08 to 4-01-26, with a maximum principal of $2,485,000 in fiscal yew 2026,

interest at 4.1680/o to 5.19o/o.

$9,265,000 Series 20064 Taxable General Obligation Tax Increment Warrants due in annual

installments of $315,000 to $785,000 on l-01-09 to l-01-26, with a maximum principal of
$785,000 in fiscal yew 2026, interest at 5.05o/o to 5.55%. In addition to being general obligations

of the City, the Warrants are secured by a special pledge of the incremental increase in local non-

educational ad valorem ta,\ receipts attributable to the increase in equalized values of taxable

properties located within the Downtown revitalization area.

$8,995,000 Series 20068 General Obligation Tax Increment Wnrrants due in annual

installments of $355,000 to $690,000 on l-01-09 to l-01-26, with a maximum principal of
$690,000 in fiscal yew 2026, interest at3.2|o/oto 4.40o/o. In addition to being general obligations

of the City, the Warrants are secured by a special pledge of the incremsntal increase in local non-

educational ad valorem tax receipts attributable to the increase in equalized values of taxable

properties located within the Downtown revitalization area.

$18,795,000 Series 2006C General Obligation Warrants due in annual installments of $640,000

to $1,405,000 on l-01-07 to l-01-26, with a maximum principal of $1,405,000 in fiscal yew 2026,

interest at 3.20o/o to 4.50%o.

1,445,000

885.000

1,375,000

2,620,0A0

$44,400,000 Series 2007 General Obligation Warrants due in annual installments of $1,080,000

to $2,930,000 on 2-01-08 to 2-01-31, with a maximum principal of $2,930,000 in fiscal yew 2031,

interest at 4.00o/oto 4.375%. 3 5,85 5,000

$700,000 Series 2007 General Obligation Warrants due in annual installments of $65,000 to

$75,000 on 8-15-08 to 8- l5- 17, with a maximum principal of $75,000 in fiscal years 2015 ' 2017,

interest at2.20o/o. 223,87 5

$42,090,000 Series 20104 General Obligation Warrants due in annual installments of $715,000

to $3,980,000 on 2-01-12 to 2-01-27, with a mo<imum principal of $3,980,000 in fiscal year 2027,

interest at 2.00o/o to 5.00%o. 39,885,000
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9. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

General Obligation Bonds (Continaed)

$60,065,000 Series 20108 Taxrble General Obligation Recovery Zone Economic Development
Term Warrants with principal of $10,920,000 due 2-01-30, $22,665,000 due 2-01-35, and

$26,480,000 due 2-01-40, with a maximum principal of $26,480,000 in fiscal yew 2040, interest at

530Yoto 5.70o/o.

$38,760,000 Series 2011 General Obligation Warants due in annual installments of $1,450,000

to $6,150,000 on 5-01-16 to 5-01-23, with a maximum principal of $6,150,000 in fiscal yew 2023,
interest at 3.00% to 5.00%.

$511,480 Series 20128 General Obligation Warrants due in quarterly installments of $16,1l5 to
$20,595 on 8-30-12 to 5-30-19, with a maximum principal of $20,595 in fiscal yeu 2019, interest

at3.650/o.

$9,835,000 Series 2012A General Obligation Warrants due in annual installments of $300,000 to

$1,400,000 on 4-l-13 to 4-l-26, with a ma,rimum principal of $1,400,000 in fiscal year 2026,

intercst at 2.00%o to 2.50%.

$65,150,000 Series 20128 Taxable General Obligation Warrants due in annual installments of
$1,090,000 to $10,000,000 on 4-l-13 to 4-l-34, with a maximum principal of $10,000,000 in fiscal

y ear 203 4, interest aI 0.48o/o to 3.88o/o.

$1,935,000 Series 2012-CWSRF-DL General Obligation Warrants $815,000 in principal

forgiven in fiscal year 2013, due in annual installments of $40,000 to $75,000 on 8-15-14 to

8-15-33, with ama,ximum principal of $75,000 in fiscal year2033, interest at2.90o/o.

$20,000,000 2013 General Obligation Warrants due in semi-annual installments of $645,161 to

$13,548,387 on l2-15-13 to 8-l-18, with a maximum principal of $13,548,387 in fiscal year 2018,

interest at2.39o/o.

$9,610,000 Series 2013-A General Obligation Warrants due in annual installments of $155,000

to $690,000 on 4-l-13 to 4-l-26, with a mar<imum principal of $690,000 in fiscal yeu 2026,

interest at 1.600/o to 2.00o/o.

93,684,724 Series 2014-4 General Obligation Warrants due in annual installments of $333,333

to $351,394 on 4-23-14 to 4-23-24, with a maximum principal of $351,394 in fiscal year 2024,

interest aI3.360/o.

$2,357,875 Series 2014-8 General Obligation Warrants dus in annual installments of $471,575
on 2-19-15 to2-19-19, interest at2.88%.

Total general obligation bonds

$ 60,065,000

3 8,760,000

361"032

9,3 65,000

62,285,000

1,080,000

I 8,709,677

9,27 5,000

3,3 5 I ,391

2,357 ,87 5

$ 287,898,850

--
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9. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

The following schedule illustrates debt service to maturity for General Obligation Bonds at September 30,

20t4.

Governmental Activities
Interest Total

Year ending

September 30:

20t5
20r6
20t7
201 8

2019

2020-2024
2025-2029

2030-2034
203s-2039
2040

Principal

$ I 1,301,147

17 ,333,77 |
17,726,492

31,657,701

I 5,5 61,136

80,049,728

48,570,000

34,403,97 5

25,660,000

5,635,000

$ 10,945,887

10,605 ,679
10,127 ,47 4

9,661,024
8,753 ,281

35,206,930

22,585,283

13,078 ,712
5,3 5 1,888

160,598

$ 22,247,034
27 ,939,450
27,853 ,966
4r,318,725

24,314,4r7
1 l5 ,256,658

71,1 55 ,283
47,482,587

31,011,888

5,795,598

Totals $ 287,898,850 $ 126, 47 6,7 56 $ 4l 4,37 5,606

Covenants - There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in various bond indentures. The
amount of long-term debt the City can incur is limited by State statute. The amount of debt applicable to
this limit during a year can be no greater than 20%o of the assessed value of taxable property as of the

beginning of the fiscal year. As of September 30,2014,the amount of outstanding debt applicable to this
limit was equal to 9.45% of property assessments as of October 1,2073.

Arbitrage Compliance - As an issuer of tax-exempt obligations, the City must comply with Section 148 of
the Internal Revenue Code whereby arbitrage on tax-exempt warrants, if any, is rebated to the IRS. The

City is in compliance with Section 148 requirements.

Current Refunding - The City issued $6,042,599 in general obligation bonds in 2014 to redeem

outstanding revenue warrants of $6,010,001 which were scheduled to mature in 2014. The reacquisition
price equaled the net carrying amount of the old debt. Future debt service requirements totaling $6,448,521
are scheduled through 2024.

Prior Years' Debt Defeasance - In prior years, the City has defeased various bond issues by creating
separate irrevocable trust funds. New debt has been issued and the proceeds have been used to purchase

U.S. government securities that were placed in the trust funds. The investments and fixed earnings from the
investments are sufficient to fully service the defeased debt until the debt is called or matures. For financial
reporting purposes, the debt has been considered defeased and, therefore, removed as a liability from the
City's government-wide financial statements. As of September 30, 2014, the amount of defeased debt

outstanding amounted to $43,570,000.
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9. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

LEASE OBLIGATIONS

Capital Leases

The City has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition of property and

equipment. These lease agreements qualifr as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have

been recorded at the present value of their future minimum lease payments as of the inception date.

The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Asset

Governmental
Activities

Machinery and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Total

The future minimum lease obligations
September 30, 2014, were as follows:

and the net present value of these minimum

31,619,788
(7 ,719,878)

23,899,9 l0

lease payments as of

Governmental
Activities

6,87 4,5 85

5,007,407
3,243,682

930,843
930,843

1,861 ,686

18,849 ,046
953 ,425

17 ,895,621

Year ending September 30:
20r5
20t6
2017
2018
2019
2020 - 202r

Total minimum lease payments
Less amount representing interest

Present value of minimum lease payments
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9. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Note Payable

During 2013, the City secured a Housing and Urban Development Section 108 guaranteed loan and

simultaneously entered into a promissory note receivable from a development company for the purpose of
repaying project costs associated with the Webber Building Project. The promissory note had a principal
amount of $2,200,000 or the amount that has been advanced to the City in connection with the Housing and

Urban Development (HUD) Section 108 guaranteed loan. During 2014, substantial structural damage was

incurred to the Webber Building. The City has determined that the related promissory note receivable is

not collectible. Consequently, the $1,730,370 receivable and unavailable revenue have been removed from
the Debt Service Fund. The City transfened $1,730,370 in 2014 from the General Fund to the Debt Service

Fund to cover the future repayment of the HUD Section 108 note payable.

The note payable bears interest at a variable rate equal to LIBOR plus 0.20%, currently 0.35% at

September 30,2014. Principal is due annually on July 20 with a maximum principal of $150,000 due on

July 20, 2029. The following schedule illustrates debt service to maturity for the note payable at

September 30,2014.

Governmental Activities
Interest Total

Year ending

September 30:

20r5
20r6
2017

2018

2019

2020-2024
2025-2029

2030-2032

triqcipa.l

$ 148,000

80,000

83,000

88,000

92,000

533,000

681,000

25,370

6,127

5,603

5,320
5,026
4,714
4,389
2,501

90

154,127

85,603

88,320

93,026

96,714

537,389

683,501

25,460

Totals 1,730,3 70 33,770 1,7 64,140

Other Long-Term Debt

Compensated absences, benefits, landfill closure costs, and other governmental
generally liquidated by the General Fund.

activity obligations are
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10. CLOSTIRE AI\D POSTCLOSURE COSTS

State and federal laws and regulations require that the City place a final cover on its landfill when closed
and perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site for thirty years after closure.
In addition to operating expenditures related to current activities of the landfill, a liability is recognized
based on the future closure and postclosure care costs that will be incurred near or after the date the landfill
no longer accepts waste. The recognition of these landfill closure and postclosure care costs is based on the

amount of the landfill used to date.

In October 1995, the City suspended use of its landfill for solid waste disposal, and began operation of a

new landfill in compliance with Subtitle D at the same site area of the existing landfill. The City can

continue to dispose inert waste in the old landfill and, as such, closure costs are not current.

The estimated liability of landfill closure and postclosure costs is approximately $7,244,684 as of
September 30,2014, which is based on66Yo usage. It is estimated that an additional $3,655,316 will be

recognized as closure and postclosure care expenses between the balance sheet date and the date the landfill
is expected to be filled to capacity (2043). There are no portions ofthe postclosure costs expected to be

paid in the next fiscal year.

The estimated total current cost of the landfill closure and postclosure care of $10,900,000 is based on the

amount that would be paid if all equipment, facilities, and services required to close, monitor, and maintain
the landfill were acquired as of September 30,2014. However, the actual cost of closure and postclosure

care may be higher due to inflation, changes in technolory, or changes in landfill laws and regulations.

The City maintains an approved letter of credit for landfill closure and postclosure care in the amount of
$10,000,000.

OPERATING LEASES

The City is obligated under an operating ground lease for the municipal parking decks through June 30,

2016. The lease is for $3,158 per month as adjusted for inflation and contains five five-year renewal

options. The City exercised its first renewal option in 2012. The future minimum lease payments as of
September 30,2014, were as follows:

11.

Year ending September 30:

2015

20r6

Total

Total rental expense for the above operating lease is $37,896 for the year ended September 30,2014.

37,896

28,422

66,3 l8
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11. OPERATING LEASES (Continued)

The City is the lessor of real estate under operating leases expiring in various years throudn 2019.
Following is a summary of property held for lease as of September 30,2014:

Real estate - Union Station

Real estate - North Jackson Street

Less accumulated depreciation

Total

The minimum future rentals on noncancelable operating leases as of September 30, 2014 we:.

20r5
20t6
20r7
2018

2019

Total minimum future rentals

2,410,365

13,200

1,448,821

97 4,7 44

r39,17 5

77,910

20,427

1 2,1 00

1 2,1 00

12,,

26r,712

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;

errors and omissions; natural disasters; and self-insured employee health. The City purchases commercial
insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the Risk Management Fund (an internal service

fund) and for all other risks of loss.

The City maintains the Risk Management Fund, an internal service fund, to account for and finance its
uninsured risks of loss related to employees' medical insurance and workers' compensation liability and to
account for and finance its general liability, law enforcement liability, automobile liability, and public

official liability uninsured risk of loss.
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12. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liabilities of the fund are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss

can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not
reported (IBNRs). The result of the process to estimate the claims liability is not an exact amount as it
depends on many complex factors, such as inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and damage awards,

Accordingly, claims are reevaluated periodically to consider the effects of inflation, recent claim settlement
trends (including frequency and amount of pay-outs), and other economic and social factors. The estimate

of the claims liability also includes amounts for incremental claim adjustment expenses related to specific
claims and other claim adjustment expenses regardless of whether allocated to specific claims. Estimated

recoveries are another component of the claims liability estimate. An excess coverage insurance policy
covers individual claims in excess of $350,000 for employees' medical insurance and $250,000 for the

liabilities financed in the Internal Service Fund. An excess coverage insurance policy covers individual
claims in excess of $600,000 for workers' compensation. Settlements have not exceeded coverage for each

of the past three fiscal years. It is anticipated that all claims outstanding as of September 30, 2014 will be

paid during the next fiscal year.

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during the past two years are as follows:

All funds of the City participate in the employees' medical insurance program and make payments to the

Risk Management lnternal Service Fund based on actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior
and current year claims.

Employeesf Medical Insurance 2014 2013

Unpaid claims, beginning of fiscal year

Incurred claims (including IBNRs)
Claim payments

Unpaid claims, end of fiscal year

Liability Insurance

Unpaid claims, beginning of fiscal year

Incurred claims (including IBNRs)
Claim payments

Unpaid claims, end of fisc al year

( I,698,568) (1,046,734)

87 5,061 1,1 50,865

1,905,300

34,954,056
(34,843,056)

r,846,900
33,534,1 03

(33 ,47 5,703)

2,016,300 1,905,300

2014 20r3

l,l 50,865 $

1,422,7 64

I ,148,500
1,049,099
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13.

14.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS

Plan Description

The City contributes to the Employees' Retirement System of the City of Montgomery (the System), a cost-

sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit plan. The System was established by the City to provide
retirement allowances to City employees and employees of one other participating governmental unit.
Responsibilrty for the adminishation and operation of the System is vested in a nine-member Board of
Trustees. The System issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and

required supplementary information for fiscal years ending December 31. That report may be obtained by
writing to the Employees' Retirement System, 103 North Perry Street, Montgomery, Alabama 36104.

Funding Policy

Plan members of the 20-year, 2l-year, and Group I Cash Balance Plan are required to contribute 6Yo of
their annual covered salary. Plan members of the Group II Age 62Plan are required to contributeT%o of
their annual covered salary. The City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate.

Contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established by, and may be amended by, the

State Legislature. The City's contributions to the System for the years ended September 30,2014,2013,
and 2012 were $14,588,276, 513,199,756, and $13,839,407, respectively, equal to the required

contributions for each year.

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

Plan Description

The City administers a single-employer postemployment defined benefit healthcare plan (the Employees'
Medical Insurance Plan) for employees of the City. The plan provides lifetime healthcare insurance for
eligible retirees and their spouses through the City's group health insurance plan, which covers both active

and retired members. The Employees' Medical Insurance Plan does not issue a publicly available financial
report. At September 30, 2014, the plan had approximately 2,276 active participants and 2,173 retired
members and benefi ciaries.
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14. POSTEMPLOYMENT BEIYEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (Continued)

Funding Policy

The employer requires biweekly contributions of $63 to $204 from active participants in the PPO plan, and

$43 to $164 from active participants in the HMP plan. In addition, a biweekly contribution of $12.50 to

$16.67 is required from participants that use tobacco and from participants with increased health risks.

Retirees or their beneficiaries are required to contribute certain amounts based on level of coverage and date

of retirement as follows:

Monthly
Contribution

Retired before January 1, 1988:

Retiree and spouse over 65

Retiree and spouse (one over 65 and one under 65)

Retired after January 1, 1988:

Retiree and spouse over 65

Retiree and spouse (one over 65 and one under 65)

Retiree over 65

Retiree over 65 and family
Beneficiary over 65

Beneficiary under 65

Beneficiary and family
Blue Cross Blue Shield W/C benefi ciary and family
Retiree under 65 (PPO Plan)

Retiree under 65 and family (PPO Plan)

Retiree under 65 (HMP Plan)
Retiree under 65 and family (HN[P Plan)

tt7
r4l

186

192

46

246
228
418

905

23r
r45
315

105

255

Total member contributions were $6,079,397 for active participants and $3,214,692 for retirees and

beneficiaries.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The City's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost is calculated based on the annual required
contribution of the employer (ARC). The City has elected to calculate the ARC and related information
using the unit credit actuarial cost method. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an

ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities
(or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.
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14. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (Continued)

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation (Continued)

The following table shows the components of the Crty's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually
contributed to the plan, and changes in the Crty's net OPEB obligation to the Employees' Medical
Insurance Plan:

Annual required contribution
lnterest on net OPEB obligation
Adjustment to ARC

Annual OPEB cost

Contributions made

Increase in net OPEB obligation
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year

Net OPEB obligation - end of year

The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed
OPEB obligation for fiscal year 2014 and the previous two years is as follows:

26,446,956

3,7 69,936
(5,450,394)

24,7 66,498
(I1,712,8 l6)

I 3,05 3,682
94,248,390

$ 107,302,072

to the plan, and the net

Fiscal Year
Ended

Annual OPEB
Cost

Percentage
of Annual

OPEB Cost

Contributed
Net OPEB
oblig?tion

$ 80,294,336

94,248,390

r07,302,072

913012012

913012013

913012014

27 ,391,140
24,114,922

24,7 66,498

34.20

42J%
47 .30
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14. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAI\ PENSIONS (Continued)

Funded Staus and Funding Progress

As of September 30,2014, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was 5322,769,661all of which was

unfunded. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $102,974,156
and the ratio of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability to the covered payroll was 313%.

The projection of future benefit payments for an ongoing plan involves estimates of the value of reported

amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples
include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer
are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are

made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the

actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities
for benefits.

Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as

understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members

to that point. The methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects

of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the

long-term perspective of the calculations.

The following significant assumptions were made:

Retirement age for active employees - Based on the historical average retirement age for the covered

Bfoup, active plan members were assumed to retire as follows:

Fire and Police - earlier of age 62 or 20 years of service. Participants hired on or after October l,
2005 are eligible for unreduced retirement at the earlier of age 55 or 25 years of service.

Non-Fire and Police - earlier of age 65 or 20 years of service. Participants hired on or after
October l, 2005 are eligible for unreduced retirement at the earlier of age 62 or 25 years of service.

Marital statw - At the calculation date, it was assumed that wives are two years younger than husbands

and 60% are assumed to have an eligible spouse who will elect coverage upon retirement.

Mortatity - Life expectancies were based on the RP 2000 system tables with floating Scale AA projegtions.

Turnover - Group-specific age-based turnover data was used as the basis for assigning active members a

probability of remaining employed until the assumed retirement age and for developing an expected future
working lifetime assumption for purposes of allocating to periods the present value of total benefits to be

paid.
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14. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAI\I PENSIONS (Continued)

Healthcare cost trend rate - Claim costs in future years are estimated by adjusting the starting claim costs

by an assumed ongoing cost trend. Such trends are based on the healthcare cost trend rate adjusted for the

impact of plan design, cost containment features, and Medicare coordination. The rates used for 2014 were

7 .50% for pre-65, and 6.00% for post-65, reduced to an ultimate rate of 6.00% inyear 2024.

Health insurance premiums - 20ll health insurance premiums for retirees were used as the basis for
calculation of the present value of total benefits to be paid.

Discount rote - 4Yo per annum, compounded annually, if unfunded.
60/o per annum, compounded annually, if funded.

Inflation role -2.5Yo per annum, compounded annually.

The Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method was utilized in computing actuarial liabilities and costs.

The amortization for September 30,2014 is calculated as a level dollar amount. The unfunded acfuarial

accrued liability is being amortized on an open basis over the maximum permissible period under GASB 45

of 30 years. The remaining amortization period at September 30,2014, was 25 years.

15. CONTINGENTLIABILITIES

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor

agencies, principally the federal and state govertment. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already

collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may

be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects such amounts, if
any, to be immaterial.

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits whose outcome is not presently determinable. ln the opinion of
the City's counsel, the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial
condition of the City. The City has established reserves for future settlements in the Liability lnsurance
Fund.

1.6. CONSTRUCTION C OMMITMENT

As of September 30, 2014,the City had commitments on construction of capital projects as follows:

Gross commitments

Spent-to-date

Net commitments

20,071,485

14,992,719

5,078,7 66

As of March 10,2015, the City's total net construction commitments were approximately $4,254,000.
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17.

18.

OTIIER COMMITMENT

On June 4,2013,the City's blended component unit, the Solid Waste Disposal Authority (SWDA) executed
a Waste Feedstock Supply Agreement with IREP-Montgomery, LLC (IREP). In addition, the City entered
into a support agreement with SWDA whereby it would obligate itself to take certain actions and support
and fund certain obligations and to make available to the SWDA or pay directly to IREP the minimum
tipping fee to begin on the commencement date, May 16, 2014, and continue for the duration of the contract
(a minimum of 25 years). The contract year is a twelve month year beginning May 16,2014. SWDA must

deliver not less than 100,000 tons of municipal solid waste during each contract year. This amount is

considered the minimum put. SWDA shall initially pay a tipping fee equal to $28 per ton of waste

delivered to IREP and this fee is subject to annual adjustments. The agreement also calls for IREP to pay

tipping fees to SWDA for residue delivered to the City's landfill at rates ranging from $28 to $56 per ton
depending on the percentage of residue delivered. For the fiscal year ending September 30,2014, SWDA
has recorded expenditures to IREP in the amount of $1,053,763 under the terms of the agreement and

revenues of $419,370. Additionally, the City has an asset and liability recorded in the amount of
$1,000,406 related to an escrow account which the City may claim against any unpaid invoices.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following related party transactions occurred during the year ended September 30,2014:

The City appropriated approximately $2,775,000 to the Montgomery City-County Public Library, a
component unit, for salaries, operating costs, and miscellaneous capital projects. The City's appropriation
is net of Montgomery County's reimbursements to the City for its share.

The Montgomery Water Works and Sanitary Sewer Board (the Board) paid the City $2,953 ,366 in lieu of
taxes and $12,100 in franchise fees. The Board, as an agent for the City, collects the City's garbage

collection fees from City residents. The City paid the Board $510,000 for the Board's collection services.

Also, during the year, the City paid the Board $716,008 in charges for the use of fire hydrants.
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19. EFFECT OF I\[EW PRONOI]NCEMENTS

Management has not currently determined what, if any, impact implementation of the following statements

may have on the financial statements of the City.

GASB Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting of Pension Plans. The objective of this Statement is to
improve financial reporting of government pension plans. Requirements of this Statement are effective
for financial statements whose fiscal year begins after June 15, 2013 . This statement will be applicable

to the City's Pension Trust Fund for the year ended December 31,2014.

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. The objective of this
Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting of government pensions. Also, it improves

information provided by government employers about financial support for pensions that is provided by
other entities. Requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements whose fiscal year

begins after June 15, 2014.

GASB Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations, This
Statement will improve accounting for mergers and acquisitions among state and local governments by
providing guidance specific to the situations and circumstances encountered within the governmental

environment. Requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements whose fiscal year

begins after December 15, 2013.

GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition of Contributions Made Subsequent to Measurement Date.

The objective of this Statement is to address an issue regarding application of transition provisions of
Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. The issue relates to amounts

associated with contributions, if any, made by a state or local government employer or non-employer
contributing entity to a defined benefit pension plan after the measurement date of the government's

beginning net pension liability. Requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements

whose fiscal year begins after June 15,2014.
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20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Montgomery County Public Education Cooperative District (the District), an Alabama cooperative district, is
expected to issue approximately $27 million in tax exempt bonds to provide for certain public education capital
improvements located, or to be located, at the Montgomery Mall and Park Crossing High School, all of which are

to be used as school facilities needed for the Montgomery County Public School System. The City and the

County of Montgomery comprise this Dishict, and the City's share of the bond issue will be approximately 38%
of the issue. The bonds are expected to be issued in April 2015 and will bear interest from that date.

2I. CHANGB IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

In fiscal year 20l4,the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 65,

Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, which establishes accounting and financial reporting

standards that reclassiff, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that

were previously reported as assets and liabilities.

One of the requirements of Statement No. 65 was that debt issuance costs must be recognized as expense in the

period incurred. The implementation of Statement No. 65 resulted in the restatement of the beginning net position

of the governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. The defened charges for issuance

costs were restated as an expense of prior periods and resulted in the adjustment below:

GOVERNMENT.WIDE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NET POSITION
AS ORIGINALLY

STATED ADJUSTMENTS
NET POSITION
AS RESTATED

Governmental activities:
Retroactive application to deferred

charge on refunding
Change in reporting for defened

charges for debt issuance costs

(17,214,182)

(731,834)

(2,617,227)

(17,214,182)

(731 ,834)

(2,617,227)

Total governmental activities (r7,214,182) (3,3 49,06r) $ (20,563,243)

Retroactive application has been applied to the 2013 fiscal year, resulting in a reduction of defened charge on

refunding of $731,834. The September 30,2013 change in net position of the governmental activities was

decreased by $741,658, due tothe application of this standard. Accordingly, the balance of $2,607,403 reduced

beginning net position of governmental activities for September 30, 2013.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF TTIE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
SCIIEDULES OF FLINDING PROGRESS AND EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Januaryl (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) [(b-a)/cl

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

29l,2ll,6g l
27 6,138,290
291,557,649
314,139,305
287,305,954
308, 199,924
312,019,112
3 10,508,336
3 I I ,423,597
331 ,197 ,507

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL) -

Entry Age

$ 354,021,708
35 I ,283,025
369,268,71 I
399,403,7 56

444,943,53 I
423,799,993
445,662,7 67
47 4,462,479
492,597,309
499,950,913

Unfunded
AAL

(UAAL)

$ 62,810,027
7 5,144,735
77 ,711,062
85,264,451

ll7 ,637,677
I 15 ,599,159
133 ,643,655
163 ,954,143
l8l, 163,722
168,75 3,306

Funded
Ratio

82.260

78.6loh
78.96%
78.65%
70.950h
72.72%
70.01o

65.440

63.220

66.250

Covered
Payroll

$ 94,998,692
90,3 7 | ,587
91,581,898
98,665,428
99,9A6,543
96,313,443
98,456,598
99,195,33 I
97,588,278
96,915,268

UAAL as a

Percentage
of Covered

Payroll

66.12%
83.1 5%
84,850

86.42%
l17 .7 50h

120,0204
135 .74Vo

165 .28Vo

185 .640

174.12%

200s $

2006
2047
2008
2009
2010
201I
2012
20t3
20r4

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Year Ended
December 31

Annual Required
Contributions

Percentage
Contributed

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2An
20t2
20r3

5,486,264

5,810,664

6,822,144

7,843,686

8,93 6,193

9,572,795

10,487,458

11,971,544

13,736,7 49

13,620,301

t00%
r00%

ta0%
r00%
r00%
t00%
100%

100%

r00%
t00%
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
EMPLOYEES'I{EALTH INSI.JRANCE PLAN OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
SCTIEDULE OF FTJNDING PROGRESS

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

Actuarial
Value of

Assets
(a)

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL) -

Bntry Age
(b)

Unfunded
AAL

(UAAL)
(b-a)

Covered
Payroll

$ 105,1 l5 ,415
103,816,125
102,974,156

UAAL as a

Percentage
of Covered

Payroll

319%
30r%
313%

(a/b) (c) [(b-a)/cl

Funded
Ratio

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

9l30l20rr
913012012

913012013

$ 335,103 ,802 $ 335,103 ,802
312,37 5,359 312,37 5,359
322,7 69,661 3 22,7 69,661
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMEI\TAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds include operating funds that are restricted as to use by the Federal or State governments

and special purpose funds established by authority of the City Council.

State Gasoline Tax Fund accounts for proceeds from a state gasoline tax. The use of this funding is restricted to
expenditures related to construction, improvement, and maintenance of highways, bridges, and streets.

Alabama Department of Transportation Fund accounts for funds received from the Alabama Department of
Transportation to be used solely for the improvement of roads.

ADECA Grant Fund accounts for funds received from the Alabama Department of Economic and Community
Affairs to be used solely for community development.

Department of Justice Grant Fund accounts for funds received from the U.S. Department of Justice to be used

solely for public safety.

Department of Aericulture Grant Fund accounts for funds received from the U.S. Department of Agriculture to be

used solely for the Summer Food Service program for children.

Homeland Security Grant Fund accounts for funds received from the U.S. Department of Homeland Security to
be used solely for homeland security and emergency management.

Miscellaneous Grant Fund accounts for miscellaneous funding arising from federal and state government sources.

Housing and Urban Development Grant Fund accounts for grant funding used for Community Development
Block Grant programs and Housing Development Action Grant programs.

Municipal Court Conections Fund accounts for funds restricted for the municipal court and jail. The funds may
be used for capital acquisition or operations.

Federal Transit Administration Grant Fund accounts for grant funding received primarily from the Federal Transit
Administration to be used for the Montgomery Area Transit System.

Riverfront Stadium Fund accounts for proceeds received from lodging tax receipts. Two and one'half (2%)

percent of total lodging tax collections are earmarked for the fund. Collections from the Montgomery Pro

Baseball Club for leasing and concessions sales are also accounted for in this fund. All proceeds are used for
capital improvements, repairs, and maintenance on the stadium and debt service payments.

Seizures and Forfeitures Fund accounts for funding received from the U.S. Marshals Service to be used solely for
public safety.

Municipal Court Judicial Administration Fund accounts for funds restricted by statute for the operations of the

municipal court.

Emergency Communications District is a blended component unit of the City and was formed by the City for the

purpose of acquiring, developing, maintaining, and operating the emergency communications system within the

City. The City receives substantially all the benefit of all of the District's public safety activities.



CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FI.INDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI4

State

Alabama
Department of

Grsoline Tranlportrtlon ADECA ofJurticc ofAgricullurc Ssudty Grotrt

Trx GnntFund 
-gl!.IgIg-..-.'.@........@-9419--IlIS-

Department Depanment Ilomeland Miscellaneous

-$278$-s
54,282 - 445,034

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables

Prepaid items

Mortgage receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued

expenses

Retainage payable

Due to other funds

Unearned revenue

Funds held in escrow

Advances from other funds

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES (DEFTCTTS)

Nonspendable:

Prepaid items

Restricted for:
Capital projects

Emergency communications center

lntergovernmental

Municipal Court Corrections

Other

Riverfront Stadium

Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES
(DEFrCrrS)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

$ 100,165 $ 673,200 $

2se'e48_ t'u'?.1i1
-s

106,262

4,040

1,427

_$_$9J1!- _l_?,306,7t- -! t0639?- -! s4282- -g 273- -{-9!:933- -9-:'46?-

sz:o; 38,162

- 253

,.rrr,ruo::::-
t<oet?? ,{^tto 

-]![ 

\A)AL 2a7 455.619 

-

$ 360Jt2 $ 416,547 $

- 3 4,272

l,107

15,002 $ 16,122 $ - $ 76,152 $

- 379.467

' 5,467

( 10.585)

--

0,23E.75e) 1,E55.e38 0.04s) _g)J_l]g:3:I 5,461

$ 360,113 s 2,306,757_ s 106,262 $ 54?82 278$445,034$5,467

---

--

(Continued)
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FLINDS (CONTNIJED)
SEPTEMBER 3O,2OI4

Special Revenue Funds

Ilousing and

Urban

Development

Grant Fund

Municipal
Court

Federal

Transit Riverfront
Stadium

Fund

Corrections Administration
Fund Grant Fund

Seizures Municipal
and Court Judicial

Forfeitures Administration
Fund Fund

Emergency

Communications

District Total

-

$-$-$
519,919

179,073 $ 3,752 $

329,627 70,867

189,636 
:

- $ 1,064,210 $ 707,193 $

174,635

44,299 $ 1,720,583 $ 4,313,968

2,478,934

-$
6,292

2,389,729-

200 5,672,991

l2E
188.289

195

- 188.289--
-!-- l3g- -! -- 

-t-?,4?s,g:3- -q-L?!!gE- -$ ?0x191- -$ 44,2ee--$--11?9Eg- -g-lg.gjgg-

1,430

138,371 $ trtlr:,\2x

- 3,300,156

- 189,889

6,323

28,752- $

6,323

-$

1,238,760

-

6e8,336 74,6te 2,396,020 28,7s2 24,2s6 ___-- _13!r!:J- 6,027,53E

r28

9,872-

- 41,414 671,963

195

1,578,649

:
3,763-

1,430

1,745,493

1,578,649

838,079

44,299

56,107

1,210,093
( 1,325,010)

-

44'299
- 41,400 - 10,944 -

- 1.210.093 -
(1!619\ 

-----10.000- -l34!2L 

82.814 r.2r0.oe3 

-g'ffL -yp- 
-Llf44- 

-l,l!2Jl4-$ 70E,336 $ - $ 2,478,834 $ 1,238,84s $ 707,te3 -9 442r9_Ui]!. 
-l_19,t?6,64_
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30. 2OI4

AND CHANGES IN FLIND

Special Revenue Funds

REVENUES
Taxes

Licenses and permits

Intergovernmental revenues

Fines and forfeitures

Miscellaneous revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:

General government

Public works
Public safety

Cultural and recreational

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over (under)

expenditures

oTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in

Transfers out
Issuance of notes payable

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES . BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES. ENDING

Alabama

State Department of Department Department Homeland Miscellaneous

Gasoline Transportation ADECA of Justice of Agriculture Security Grant

JI!I--Jq!!!I}I!!- GnntFund Gntrttrrrd 
-@--@t!-J9-$-$-$-$-$-s-$-

92,468
2,8U,1s4- 6,608,572_ 48'l,g7s_ 493,901 163"114- l'677,593- t6l

43,315 

-:S!:1--.....: -lWL

2-917.2626.608.572531.2s4493.901203,5671'677,593364,611

4,846,034
453,808

l '302'950 
3 17,30;

214,681 12.756

- t,658,48;472,675

,,rrr,rr, 
203'567- 

,r,,oi 
354'756

4.846,034 --_g:]391:-_ry- 
48't.e1e 203.561 

-L9W--19)3-o,s28,772\ _11911gll (6eo) 

-W- -l2gl
2,341,695 53 1,484

412,923 228,021 (690) 5,922 I (2,835)

(1,6s1,6s2) r.627,sr7 (3s5) 6,e24\ 25 

-!g:gq 
-u9?-

-!--LlJ:!Jl9I -t-l,ss5,:t!- j-Ilggl -!-l3I -!-.?:- -$'-.-(l.ggt j-:,46?-

(Continued)
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CITY OF MONTGOMERYN ALABAMA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE S, EXPENDITURES,
BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FI.INDS (CONTINUED)
SEPTEMBER 30,2014

AND CHANGES IN FIJND

Special Revenue Funds

Ilousing and

Urban

Development

$-$

1,969,878

Corrections Administration

.t -t
- 2.589,919

1,832,125

- (504,844) 259

and

Forfeitures Administration

2,054,994- t 
:$ :t

$5,25;

(1,632,741) 249,433

Municipal

Court

Federal

Transit Riverfronl

Stadium

Seizures Municipal

Court Judicial Emergency

Communications

DistrictGrrnt Fund Fund Gntrt Fund Fuod Fund I'und Total

5,069,245

$ 2,054,984

92,469

21,888, 195

2,267,381

j.073,417

6,157,581

(6,496,052)

J
43e.548

-

343,490

3,805,650

-

19.213 221.862 387.097

-L:!ryL 

L832.t25 

-a:!c3u--2ry--J-l--!2gL-{gg3L-%11!g-2,030,473 90,543 5,803,094 8,605,355

488'261 - 1.033 6'638'278

137,664 4,822 3,453'535 6'044'486

54f 84,961 - 43,825
24't.sis 6e,eis -J119L _UlgflL

2.767,10 e0,543 5.8?4.062 _!1gg]- _Jjry-_4.v2-_U!9E1!- _zllllc-l

_l3lggl:I t.74t.s82 (3,2s4,143) 2.1e1.885 _2!W_ 

-!3y3!- 

1,582.607 

-129P:!I
-- 

(r,rou,.ri) 
3'284'402- 

G,rro,uri) - torr,oool
77n 019

778.019 (2.246.426\ 3.284.402 (3.824.626\ - (425,000)

-4-

5,434 1,582,607

10,000 430.22s 82,5s5 _3:!2&L_!!.9!-_:9.99:-

-l-19,000- -!--glf]:r j-E!]l -l-l,2'0,g2l- i-e!?ggL -! 443rr--! r's82'60?- -g-$]l3ll9-
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FLTND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
STATE GASOLINE TAX FLIND
FOR THE YEARENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI4

_ Original

$ 69,478

2,7 64,647

$ 69,478

2,7 64,647

$ 92,468

2,824,794

Variance
With Final
Budget -
Positive

.(I.{ggative)

22,990
60,147

Budgeted Amounts
Final Actual

REVENUES
Licenses

Intergovernmental revenue

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Public works:

Maintenance

Traffic engineering

Total expenditures

Excess of expenditures over
revenues

OTHER FINANCING USES

Operating transfers in

Total other financing uses

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES - ENDING

2,834,r25 2,834,125 2,917,262 83,137

998,032

1,83 6,093

998,032

1,83 6,093

1,349,614

3,496,420

(351,582)

. (1,669?327)

(2,01 1,9q9)2,834,125 2,834,125 4,846,034

(t,928,772) (1,928,772)

2,341,695 2,341 ,695

2,341,695 2,341 ,695

( I,65 1,982)

$ ( 1,65 1,682)

412,923

( 1,65 I,682) .( 1,65,1,98?)

-$ ( 1,65 1,692) $ ( 1,?J 8,759)

412,923

$ 412,923

--
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NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are employed to account for the operations of a commercial nature, which private
organizations do not provide. All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in these

funds, including, but not limited to, administration, operations, maintenance, financing, an6 related debt

services. It is the intent of the goveming body that the costs of providing these services to the general

public be financed primarily through user charges.

Municipal Golf Fund accounts for the operations of the City's recreational complexes.

Montgomery River Boat Fund accounts for the operations of the City's River Boat.

Montgomery Food Services Fund accounts for the operations of the City's Food Services. On

October 1,2013, the activities of the City's Food Services were transferred to the General Fund.



CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI4

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables

Inventories

Total cunent assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS

Capital assets:

Land

Buildings and system

Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital net assets, net of
accumulated depreciation

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Due to other funds

Compensated absences

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Compensated absences

Total noncurrent liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

708,627 18,055

Food

Services Total

$ 632,943

12,466

_ 81,673

J?6,6.82

665,341

213,83 I

1,565,024

397,356

(!,6,66,27 4\

,1,,ry5i27,8

1,901,960

150,466

30,857

341,527

451

523,301

- 121.944

-

- I 21,944

--

- 645.245

-*

Municipal
Golf

630,793

9,233

68,601

665,341

213,83 I
1,565,024

397,356
(1,66-6,27 4\

l,l7 5,278

1,883,90L

Montgomery
River Boat

2,150

2,833

-
-

-

I 8,05 5

- -
124,254

8,091

283,5 l6
451

416,312 l oq,esj

26,212

22,7 66

5 8,01 I

-

r?r,,944

121,944

538,256 106,989

l,l7 5,278

, 17 0,37 |

$ 1,345 ,649

--

(88,934)

$ (88,934)

| ,17 5,27 8

,81?437

$ 1,256,7 15

--
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CITY OF MOI\TGOMERY, ALABAMA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FIJNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI4

OPERATING REVBNUES

Charges for goods and services

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Cost of sales and senrices

Administration
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

OPERATTNG TNCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATTNG REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest income
Transfer of capital assets to

governmental activitie s

Income (loss) before contributions and
transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out

Change in net assets

TOTAL NBT ASSETS - BEGINNING

TOTAL NET ASSETS - ENDING

s 1,209,769

1,209,7 69-

135,524
l,695,g l0

57,540

I,p88,874

(679,105)

$ 842,3 l9

842,319

Municipal Montgomery
Golf River Boat

Food
Services Total

$ 2,052?088 -

4052,,q88

340,937

2,208,611

- 57,!40.

: 2;q07,9p8

- (5 5 5,000)

172

(22 22^\ (22 224\

-

205,413
5 12,801

718,214

124,105

172

-

(679,105)

495,337

. . (59,062)

(23 9,830)

1,585,47?

$ 1,345,649

--

124,277

( t 0r,+gsr

, 29,79?

/ | oq 7??\

- $ (8,p,934)

(22,224)

630,351

J
608,127

,**
$

--

(577,052)

I , 125,688
( 15e.550)

_ 3 89,q8.j5

, - ?97,629

$ 1,256,715

--
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI4

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers and users

Payments to suppliers

Payments to employees

Transfers to other funds

Transfers from other funds

Municipal Montgomery Food

Golf River Boat Services Total

$ t,209,653 $ 870,982 $ 30 $ 2,080,665

(873,303) (72A,001) (7 ,604) ( I ,600,908)

(839,686) (839,686)

(56,062) (103,488) (159,550)

495,337 - 630,351 1,125,688

722,791 (l s 1,153) (r2lp2trI 373,64s

Paymentsforinterfundservicesused (66,436) J- 66,436)

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (569,772) 150,981 (7,574) (426,365)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTTVITIES

Net cash payments (to) from other tunds 283,516 (47,665) (828,344) (592,493)

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTTVITIES

Purchases of capital assets

Net cash used by capital and related

financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Interest income r72 - 172

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUTVALENTS 123,788 - (205,s67) (81,779)

cAsH AND CASH EQUMLENTS -

BEGTNNING 507.005 2,150 205,567 714,722

--CASH AI\ID CASH EQUIVALENTS -
ENDTNG _{_630,?e1_ _g_2,rsg_ -{ 

-_ _$ 632943_

NONCASH II{VESTING. CAPITAL
AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Transfer of capital assets to
govemmentalactivities $ $ - S (22,224) S Q2,224)

(2?,22D JJ - J29,?3r),

, (29,231) JJ -89,T,L)

90
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS (CONTINUED)
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR TTIE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI4

Municipal Montgomery Food

Golf River Boat Service Total

---

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING
TNCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH

PROVTDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating

income (loss) to net cash provided

(used) by operating activities:

Depreciation expense

(Increase) decrease in receivables
(Increase) decrease in inventories

Increase(decrease) in accounts payable

and accrued expenses

Increase in defened revenue

Increase in compensated absences

Total adjustments

$ (67e,l 05) $ l24,l 05 $ $ (5ls?g9o)

57,540 57 ,540

(l ,223) 5 ,897 3 0 4,7 04

(6,233) (8,540) 8,686 (6,087)

54,373 6,7 53 (16,290) 44,836

I , I 09 22,7 66 - 23,875

?,767 JJ - 3,7q7-

109,333 26,876 (7,57L 128,635

Net cash provided (used) by operating
activities -8 (s6ela- i-1s09!I- -{-(?,5?9- -q-(426'365).
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Montgomery's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a

context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required

supplementary information says about the City's overall financial health.

Contents Pa&g

92Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's financial

performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting the City's ability
to generate its sales taxes.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's cunent

levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

r03

Demographic and Economic Information 110

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the

environment within which the City's financial activities take place and to help make comparisons

over time and with other govemments.

Operating Information 112

These schedules contain information about the City's operations and resources to help the reader

understand how the City's financial information relates to the services the City provides and the

activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive

annual financial reports for the current year.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERYO ALABAMA
SCFM,DULE 1

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT
(accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year
2010 20tl 2012 2013

-

20r4

Governm ental activities
Net investnent in capital assets

Restricted:
Public works
Public safety

Cultural and recreational

Capital proJects

Murucipal Court Corrections

Unrestricted

Total governmental activities net position

Business-type activities
Net investnent in capital assets

Unrestricted

Total business-type activities net position

Primary government
Net investnent in capital assets

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total primary government net position

$ 19,904,624 $ 221,977,996 $

2,378291 2,954,236
1,390,&4 950,068

1,839,281 2,925,208
44,321,792 &,06r.,096

225,335,184 $ 214,327,085

5,367,112 4,084,839
1,365,804 1,821,728

4,880,585 7,314,372

u,775,1O2 89,389,536

$ 220,950,653 $ 253,437,M9 $ 203,973,790

3,510,905 1,487,038 1,304,163

I,144,993 769,875 991,2U
4,280,263 4,260,M3 4,622,557

30,017,486 72,261,635 34,ffi9,691
484,534

030.543.360) (236-206-45s1 (208-26t-e96\

$ 129,360,%0 $ %,009,605 $ 37 Jn943

$ 14,675,876 $ 14,351,455 $ 34,407,586
(7.181.180\ 790.709 (1,430.759)

$ 7,494,6% $ 15,t42,t9 S 32,n6W

$ 235,626,529 $ 267,788,904 $ 238,38r,376
38,953,97 78,778,611 42,012,149

(1a1 1)A \LO\ ()75 4lS 746\ OO9 69) 755\

$ 217,212,528 $

4,199,221

3,36,997
9,383,106

202,191,726 $

4,&8,168

3,126,119
8,4M,945

201,285,470

4,672,714
2,392,96
1,590,318
3,049,561

875,&1 758,012

(42.752.2s;\ (76.r68,e6;) (100.673.323) (138.05e.8e0)

s 207w336 S 216JM,637 $ 221,050,464 $ t?8,8??,6?0

$ 14,801,042 $ 17,355,041 $ 16,311,677 $ 15,775,925

(3.238.31t) (4.022.236\ (4^128.744\ (5.178-2771

$ 11,562,4 $ 13,332,805 $ 12,182,93 $ 10,59?,98

$ 214,705,ffi $ 239,333,037 $ 241,&6,861 $ 230,103,010
49,930,008 70,895,608 96,388,603 102,610,475

(45,990.607) (80.191.203) (104.802.067) (143.238.167)

672,821 430,225
o)A l1a ()0,6.\ ()AO 1)) 4aR\ (?5? lqs 405\

$ 11,53?,218 $ QO58243\ $ (402A376)

$ 32,791,67 $ 28,7X),949 $ 27,223,447
/? ?or q4R\ /? ??4 555\ /2 532 RR5)

$ 30,489,?t9 $ 25,556,3% $ U,694.562

$ 250,004,195 $ 230,982,675 $ 228,508,917

18,497,786 17,367,469 I 1,705,559
0)6 41\ o,AA\ /?4? 156 qq?\ os1 7)R )ql\

$ 218.645.067 $ 230.037.442 $ 233,233,3s7 $ 189J7s,318 $ 136,855,636 $ il1,rsr,769 $ 70,700,7?0 $ 42,O26,93't $ 4,ee3.1.:l_ $ Llu]ljgg

--::-

Note: Pqiods prior to 2Ol3 have not been ret@ctiv€ly ctated to rcfl61 the impl€rentatid of GASB Stderent No. 65, Item Previ%ly Reryned 6 Assets and Liabilities-
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
SCI{EDULE2
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
(accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year

$ 66,537,712
47,787,350
79,4&,96
24,672,173

7,805,568

@

45,312,166
17,459,232
6,445,108
2,962,792

13,576,462
22.831.189

-

108-586-949

(l17.680.820)

93,272,301
24,529,629

9,237,249
5,099,540

I,951,430
210,227

1.22,422

2,191,059
5,397,967

155,785

r54.476.159

$ 36,795,339

$ 66,407,230
53,005,558
72,695,668
20,414,279
9.089.961

-

@

41,954,623
13,075,274

|,0/.5,697
11,280,471
t9.777 -O90

-

87.133.1 55

-

(r34.479.54t\

96,432,1O2
26,763,925-

8,645,857
5,656,263

I,781,887
177,033

131,995

5,937,376
6,189,356

$ &,197,483
52,259,298
75,159,784
23,220,119
tL.467 ,07 |

@

44,037,36L
12,906,112

I,l4l,386
12,694,612
9.351.999

-

80.13 t -470

(t46.t72,285\

98,174,542
28,552,456

8,560,057
5,444,2&

t,761,227
248,883

158,378

6,875,303
5,514,223

4t.745

$ 72,773,403
60,747,459
90,376,182
30,131,588
ll,822,7&

265,851,396

-
47,421,394
12,795,231

988,058
9,307,772
5.859.738

-

76.372.t93

-

(r89.479.203\

93,799,356
30,241,233

8,363,071
5,550,268

1,619,508
227,5rl

l4l,63l
3,862,&r
6,531,834

323,158

51,000,292
14,943,331

2010

-

20,029,894
15,949,768

$ 75,547,042
51,232,910
95,703,085
33,826,263
14,459,954

@

16,597,743
16,48?,254

1,518,289
13,082,354
I1.386.411
59.067.051

(.2rr.702.2031

88,699,968
30,885,675
31,366,586

8,052,601
5,712,415
3,337,930
1,451,o72

276,937

206,561
124,557

7,734,015
159,766

153.416.541

, (rr,rrr,uur',

$ 76,833,428
M,582,467
95,841,814
34,317,494
12,795,380

264.370.583

-
18,189,668
16,907,133

1,750

1,325,399
9,473,816
9.390.530

-

55.288.296

-

/?o9 o.R) )3,7\

91, I 59,140
29,892,243
32,630,148

7,633,517
6,061,073
3,298,583
1,426,532

291,270

374,097
&,461

12,465,707
301,805

$ 90,962,630
M,184,691
91,141,018
32,880,877
I1.571.588

270-740-804

18,211,157
19,955,519

1,250
I,178,046

I1,055,114
6.1 79.104

-

55.580.190

-

(215.160.614)

-
93,635,244
29,394,346
32,949,782

7,770,057
6,217,583
3,395,139
1,495,410

391,566

114,298
24,626

10,027,818

$ 81,766,281
44,674,284
94,292,962
33,624,299
13,216,304

-

267,574,130

17,946,132
18,332,999

822,692
1,482,858

15,112,143
t2-3tL-447

-

66.008.261

-

(201.565.869)

95,775,104
28,963,542
33,899,942

5,154,871
8,119,756
3,558,689
1,494,4'78

296,796

lg7,22l
10,179

7,250,519_

(2.786.3st}

tBt.924.736

$ (19,91,133)

20tl 20t2 2013 2014
E

Governmental activities
Expenses

Governmental activities :

General government
Public works
Public safety

Cultural and recreational
Interest on long-term debt

Total governmental activities expenses

Program revenues

Govemmental activities :

Charges for services:

General government
Public works
Public safety
Cultural and recreational

Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

Total governmental activities program revenues

Total pnmary government net expens€

General revenues and other changes in net position

Governmental activities.
Ta<es:

Sales taxes

Property taces

Business license taxes

Motor fuel taxes

Lodgrng ta;<es

Rental taxes
Tobacco taxes

Alcoholic beverage taxes

Grants and contributions not restricted
to specific programs

lnvestment earnings
Miscellaneous revenue

Gain on sale of assets

Extraordinary item
Transfers

Total governmental activities general revenues

and other changes in net position

Total governmental activities change in net position

$ 92,913,247 $ 86,120,124
57,744,148 47,781,026
83,265,102 89,288,506
27,939,722 33,837,935
11,.452,425 10,561.682

2733t4.&4 267.589.273

916,564 1,237,731
9,522,821 14,727,336
t0-074.229 21.969.518

--

86.457.237 73.814.247

-

o86.8s7.407) (t93.77s.O261

83,980,254
31,099,699

9,202,877
5,269,547
1,7&,595
l,4l1,990

254,164

186,693

425,825
5,794,279

86,150,767
31,378,176
30,482,588

8,335,705
5,578,274
3,285,663
1,438,763

234,501

199,O92

50,449
6,905,175

146,640

r.ror.rro tr.u,r,*i, ,o.r,r.r*, ro.rrr.ror, ,1:.#:.Y", t,r.rut,,or', ,rn.rnr.*il <r.ror.o,it 251.687

-

182.895.562 185.667.556

$ (26,186,?25) $ (29,493,058)

t44-t0t-842 150.518.1l2

$ 9,622,301 S 4345W
145.906.409 138.040.677

s (43,572,794\ $ (48,816,730)

160.423.691

$ (33,351,335)

Note: Pciods priorto 2013 have not bsrretroactively mtated toreflect tlre inplementation ofGASB Staterent No.65, /t€ms Previouly Reporkd 6 Assers and Uabilities.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
SCHEDULE 2

CHANGES TN NET POSITION (CONTINUED)
(accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year

r,741,793
5,632,383
2,803,024

1,749,082
5,953,913
3,043,1 18

2,194,586
6,223,595
3,290,143

3,205,634
5,709,728
2,932,109

2010

2,291,121
5,889,762
2,014,501

3,516,281
5,9ffi,749
2,343,402

2,893,071
4,157,248
2,099,827

2,968,117
4,314,540
2,100,103

2,508,276
4,236,650
1,9&36

20ll 2012 2013 2014

Business-type activities
Expenses

Montgomery Area Transit System
Montgomery Zoo
Municipal Golf
Civic Center
Municipal Parking Decks
Montgomery River Boat
Food Services

Total business-type activities expenses

Revenues

Charges for services:
Montgomery Area Transit System
Montgomery Zoo
Municipal Golf
Civic Center
Municipal Parking Decks
Montgomery River Boat
Food Services

Total business-type activities rev€nues

Total business-type activities net program expeirse

Other changes in net position
Investnent earnings
Miscellaneous revenue
Capital contributions
Gain on sale of assets

Transfers

Total business-type activities change in net position

Total primary govemment change in net position

s 1,306,932 $
5,235,307
2,170,024

609,091
203.308 217,947_ 26r,244

- 

:

10,964,060 11,974,568

318,963 348,955
553,658 858,102

--

12,720,092 11,402,441

--

t99-525 330,042 383,818
7U,208 657,438 696,408 718,214

J 1,730,374 1,086,281 

-

L2,914,682 11.921,776 1,1,165,M9 9,427,5M

--

9,524,662 10,376,725

--

629,508
2,524,089

941,163
495,378
159,087 152,555

613,269 605,931 7fi,752 800,896 761,053 74r,779 Av2,9E3 1,0/.3,162 I,169,748

2,6E5,908 2,931,547 3,284j39 2,553,288 2,719,497 3,144,8EE 2,157,345 2,64?,074 2,552,954

1,069,t17 1,347,708 1,52E,342 r,372,8t4 883,908 1,167,130 1,2473AO 1,237,161 1,2@,769

56,369 62,302
- 564,180 739,255 804,468

- 
-----.:.----13119-

4,9999999999999999.79_:,619,802_ 5,353,480 s,287,4r6 6,r20,23r _5594,8O2_

_JZryL (6354.766) (7,36,612\ _lg4gl (6.7e4,451) (s.226.e74\

99,604_

16,432

$ 3,195,955

"'u'n, 
t t,t-t

230,980
691-978

322,t79 280,769

'nl 37.:7& ot:

T:x:.r; s42lr;
832'747 J

6,483,458 5,774,790

/4 6Rr qgr) (7 65) 116\

- 533

--

4,749,225 4,52r,549

(4,775,437\ (5,855,176)

8,341

35,042

11,288

s t9J54J35 $ 11,392,3?5

(12,308,550) 7,6L3,962 4,812,966
#--

(12,265,167\ 7,625,250 4,829,398

---

$ (17.040.604) s r.770.o74 s (l.149.872)

4,249,24; 8,762,rc; 24,59t,442

4,263,660 13,762,493 24,629,114

$ (3,102,952) $ 7,@7,468 $ 17,834,663

4,753,80;

4,769,481

$ (1,585,285'l

36,441
2,743,014

2,739,866

$ (2,487,108)

(zs t,:r+t
/?5t ??4)

$ (4,933,325)

2,786,351

2,786,884

$ (865,832)

$ (45,158,0?9) $ (51,919,682) $ (25,703,867) $ (40,450,999) $ (28,673,833) $ (34,426,383) $ (20,506,965)
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
SCHEDULE 3

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FLTNDS

(modtfied accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year

2m5

$ 2,517,653 $ 3,234,275
4,852,300 4,852,300

39,562,340 46,083,120

20/J7

-

$ 2,536,789 $ 2,538,295
4,852,300 4,852,300

48,725,745 36,114,095

$ 3,006,134 $
12,480,127
18,322,084

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

General fund
Reserved
Unreserved" designated
Unreserved
Nonspendable:

Inventories
Long-term receivables
Prepaid items

Assigned to other
Unassigned

Total general fund

4,180,402 $

5,580,127
(370,572)

--

$ 46,932,293 $ 54,169,695

---
--

$ 56,114,834 $ 43,504,690

--
--

$ 33,E08,345 $ 9,389,957

---

(4,685,090) 5,750,888 11,778,557

---

s 5,753,355 $ 15,130,330 S 17,673,543

1,216,275
6,016,006

156,915
3,1 l0

o l/t1 6)4\

$ 5,2U,682

1,282,344
9,048,715

107,386

1,172,223
8,l7l,l7l

36,048

1,L86,772
4,697,483

10,731
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
SCHEDULE 3

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FLINDS (CONTINUED)
(modfied accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year

2005

$ 13,192,117

4,443,282
50,000

40,427,193
(45O,272)

$ 17,436,580 $

4,137,141
50,000

54,274,757
(639,014)

$ 12,773,443 $

2,351,976

5,912,466 $

2,501,349

13,248,404 $

2,000,065

2010 20ll 20t2 2013 2014

All other governmental funds
Reserved

Unreserved designated reported in:
Debt service funds
Capital projects funds

Unreserved, undesignated reported in:
Capital projects funds
Special revenue fimds

Nonspendable:
Assets held for resale

Inventories
Long-term receivables
Prepaid items

Restricted for:
Capital projects
Debt service
Emergency communications center
Intergovernmental
Landfill
Mtrnicipal Court Corrections

Other
Riverfront Stadium
Roads

Assigned to:
Capital projects
Other

Unassigned

Total all other govemmental funds

8,184,796

2,808,696

80,089,520
8,114,287

56,863,500
9,332,375

27,053,980
5,987,202

64,274,507
2,376,183

856,500 @.500 533,600 21,931

-J--J-:

$ 57,662,320 5 75,259,464 S 99,197,299 $ 81,321,294 w $ 81,899,159------

2,600,889
2,Ol5,4lO

48r'',534

13,083
4,506,503

448,962

678,527
99,205

(4,140,529)

-

$ M,991,772

6,802,355
865,984
672,821

ll,7M
3,047,947-

253,295
(1,657,915)

s 22,658,426

4,192,108
4,3@550

469,090

8,155
2,842,834

108,715

(1,668,547)

$ 21,665,108

1,126
87,132

34,834,191
2,506,239

I,126
50,278

9,806,574
2,139,717

201,126
16,048

9,38y'.,544
1,212,885

404,020
2,316

2,446,650
2,149,92r
L,578,649
5,715,597
1,642,477

44,299

70,320
1,210,093

(l.325.010)

$ 1392126.

Note:Psiodspriorto20llhavenotb*nretoactivelyrcstatedfdth€impactofGASBStatflmtNo.54, FutdBalarceReportingandtleGovememalFundTWDeiiniriorc.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
SCHEDULE 4

CHANGES IN FLIND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
(modfied accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year

Revenues

Taxes
Licemes and permits

Intergovemmental revenues

Charges and fees for services

Fines and forfeitures
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures

Current:
General government

Public works
Public safety

Cultural and recreational
Intergovernmental

Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal payments

Interest
Debt issuance costs

Total expenditures

Excess of revenue over (under) expenditr.res

Other linancing sources (uses)

Proceeds from sale of assets
Transfers in
Transfers out
Capital leases

Issuance ofbonds
Issuance of refunding bonds

Issuance of notes payable

Paynrent to refunded bonds escrow agent

Bond premium and discount, net

Total otlrer financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Debt service as a percentage

of noncapital expenditures

9&,232 570,965
212,068,036 237,5&,891

? nr 7 ()go rR ??R Ri7)

zs.zsz.s:; u1ttl',\tl
(32,681,963) (40,375,333)

946,756 3,795,309
32,500,000 37,055,000
26,035,000

20ll 2012 2013 2014

$134,300,376$139,457,067$142,741,429$139,800,947$13t,983,126$136,r101,E49$138,416,498$139,762,35E$142299,345$143,363,226
3t,24t,99t 33,263,521 35,066,083 37,956,%8 37,874,584 38,269,2n 38,943,003 40233,482 4,745,775 41,974,540

22,t2t,U9 28,3t4,508 2O,493,4M n3a2,'t85 22,8/19,318 31J09,043 25,003,498 2l36/.,Q6 22,877,080 31,816,898

11,343,893 1t,685,509 il,599,u5 11,360,885 t3A57,972 14,592,111 15,311,202 15,585,598 18,12O,a72 8,284,417
4,434,492 4,769,262 5,574,49', 6,817,336 8,6,1E,985 9,834,116 7,853,059 8,929,730 8,071,750 7,407,973

2,138,199 5,7aO,989 6,',t6,329 3,K2,41 425,a30 50,446 124,557 @,461 24,626 10,179

-3s4j26--e9:!:L -JW- 

?.il6.9ql 

-96?!,.y1 -!ry 

,,9:7,29.!g ,t:ro;:!,lo, =,1,?19.9? 4ry
r5,0-55,tx-- 

-BW@ 
------ZF-iItT- ------d5lE36{ - Dl@6, z-38,n7J8e 232,4o'1,s83 237,9%,505 240,057,541 24e,8o2,0rj

40,831,666
45,702,938
68,816,756
21,395,371

22,O38,981

5,608,882
6,709,210

42,878,968
57,770,U2
72,042,280
24,549,676

5,614,812
19,43l,Ul

6,26tr.,217
8,440,090

41,&4554
56,619,086
75,433,957
24,983,988

3,099,263

21,o74,966

11,173,939
I1,030,577

546,817

245,196,147

(15,884,636)

499,260
52,478,773

(60,534,O47)
4,715,4W

44,400,000

40,290,2&
54,863,215
81,551,085
26,859,709

3,870,401
22,574,761

46r.M4
36,134,376

(43,990,008)
4,923,829

41,762,638
55,801,973
80,660,653

20,439,052
25,66r.,518
19,903,596

209.170
53,853,006

(61,568,260)
5,010,974
5,000,000

47,973,762
42,371,546
80,282,388
28,O14,356
14,594,405
22,953,351

177,871
6,527,332

(81,233,589)
5,96,304

64,905,000
42,090,000

44,341,654
43,843,513
83,563,849
29,047,378

4,214,1O2

35,497,808

413,709
39,962,038

(52,984,538)
4,332,320

38,760,000

53,663,426
40,306,505
92,011,982
29,642,735
2,649,743

23,519,971

462,131
29,721,790

(38,224,333)
14,M7,540

5l1,480

55,517,932
40,563,256
82,176,920
30,381,600
13,176,451
8,267,765

54,133,890
39,338,940
83,226,748
29,816,021
5,731,528
9,536,571

1,6f.3,452
41,383,47

(54,267,557)
4,&3,947

6,042,599
778,019

-

243,507

11,429,727 18,3&,694 18,927,115 I 1,031,381

11,794,593 11,324,313 10,936,652 13,660,258

@@-#*##
/?e ?r 5 ?on\ /s? nsR 7R?\ ()9, )79, ?57\ R7 )Ol 177\

L1,274,995 14,285,&2 21,657,205
13,279,429 12,O20,W2 11,784,215

5,000 888,563 21,037

266,353,786 257,278,131 255,246,155

/?R ?r{? ?Rl \ (11 ))O 59O\ (5 l|14178.\

554,770
41,971,370

(51,828,388)
4,003,234

29,583,757
76,946,243

952,351
(76,946,243)(25,267,7OO)

509,672 160,270

27,294,738 33,073,383

--

$ 30,311,828 S 24,834,546

6.69/o 7.3404

208-215

--

41,767,610 (2,470,759\

s 25,882,974 $ (31,186,149)

10.57/o lO 45oA

(39,108,572) (40,896,025)

Gffi#
$ (49,553,894 S rc,O25JU $ (41952,662) s Qt,8u,673) $ 8,383,55? $ (5,200,63D

L0.9toh LL.O40h 14.o20h

- 367.153

6J3850S 
'5,6U247

1r.98% 12.28% lo.8f/o
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
SCHEDULE 5

TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE, GOVERNMENTAL FLINDS

City
Sales

$ 93,272,301
96,432,102
98,174,542
93,799,356
83,980,254
86,150,767
88,699,968
91,159,140
93,635,244
95,775,104

Real and
Personal
Property

$ 24,529,629
26,7 63,925
28,552,456
30,241,233
31,099,698
31,378,176
30,885,675
29,892,243
29,394,346
29,963,542

Alcoholic
Beverage Tobacco

1,951 ,430
1,781 ,887
1,761,227
1,619,508
l,4l I ,990
| ,438,7 63

1,451 ,072
| ,426,532
1,495,410
1,494,478

Lodging

5,099,540
5,656,263
5 ,444,264
5,550,268
5,269,547
5,578,274
5,712,415
6,061,073
6,217 ,583
8,119,756

Motor
Fuel

Year Tex Trx Tex Tax Tax Tax Trx Total
Fiscal

2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
201 0

20tl
20t2
20t3
20t4

Rental

: ' iiz,+ii:,i:i
- 139,800,946

1,764,595 131,983,125

3,285,663 136,401 ,849
3,337,93A 138,416,498

3,298,583 139,762,358

3,395,139 142,299,345
3,558,689 143,353,226

9,237 ,249
8,645,857
8,560,057
8,363,070
8,202,877
8,335,705
8,052,601

7,633,517
7,770,057
5,154,871

210,227
177,033
248,883
227,511
254,164
234,501
27 6,837

291,270
391,566
296,786

Note: The City ofMontgomery instituted a rental tax in 2009 offour (4) percent for tangible personal property, linens, and garments and one and one'half(1.5)

percent for vehicles, truck trailen, and house trailers. Effective April 1, 2014, the rate for vehicles, truck trailers, and house trailen was increased to 3.5%,
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
SCFIEDULE 6

NET TAXABLE SALES BY CATEGORY

Fiscal Year

2UD7

-

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

o@.!dEd-d* s 2.a31.4!qa2r I \tt4259,tn a 15to,?x1:35 S 1'r3t,l39.r0a a 2,25q$47{a 12,'2,566,115 a \r39,75\rn S 2'335,49'1,2t3 t 2'a3tlo.oaa t 2'aglr8toll
Addrsilr@ s7,3lFlr 46la$,r9 1$.rf,t41 42oJ44a7o 323,16a.9r9 1*.67/79 ,llr,09A060 ,l5l,l23,tlr as1,a511,, ,l7,l0€J66
M&ddrb.r.h. -----J!2gi!:- 

----!82!3,59- 
-----31!!!E- 

-glru! 
-------:Z!W- ----!l'34Jl9- -------lg44e- -----]4.qjg!q 

-!4P&- 
------WE-

Totals $ 2,976,320,4s6 S 3,086,001,763 $ 3,14e,17q186 g 2,e75,3s4,225 S 2,635,3!4,26 _$ 2,J62,154,073_ _g z,u5,ru,4n_ _9 2,252,957,4rs_ _9_:,05?,654,99!_ -g_:,t28,5319!_

civdirdiL.dft 3.w' x'/|lqr 3.tw

3G: CiyRru Di?ni6 ofd. Dr.t6 orFlrc.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
SCHEDULE 7
SALES TAX REVENUE PAYERS BY CATEGORY

200s

Number
Tax of Top Ten

Remitted Taxpavers Taxpavers

Number
Tax of ToP Ten

Remitted Taxpavers TaxpaYers

Number
Tax of Top Ten

Remitted Taxpavers Taxpayers

General merchandise

Auto and agriculnue

Manufacruring machine

Totals

86,851,656

5,597,645

$ e32723U

$ 90,622,355

6,110,034

1.442.1s3

-

$ ,u?1,51'

6,544 22.800/o

262 66,950/o

. 362 63.340/o

_u,g_

2010

5,524

t75

270,

5,969

23.650/o

66.s9%

40.74o/o

5,546

182

257

22.86%

67.03%

52.990/o

$ 89,469,104

5,768,728

1.t94.270

$,96,432,10.2 _ 5,985

Number
Tax of Top Ten

Remitted Taxpavers Taxpavers

Number Number

Tax of ToP Ten Tax of ToP Ten

Remitted Taxpale$ Taxpavers ne!q!@d- TaxpavPrs --T*p:fgg-

General merchandise

Auto and agriculture

Manufacturing machine

Totals

87,322,631

5,256,837

$ , ,3,?rr,356

6,327

2sl
360

___=6,??g-

20tl

21.87o/o

67.s3%

51.s5%

78,160,260

4,723,801

$ 83,9.80,251

6,31I

276

352

-q,'T=,
20r2

23.25o/o $ 79,189,817 6,082

59,060/o 4,480,843 216

53,75o/o 2,4q0,107 348

$ 86,150,767 6,646

----

2013

24.33%

62.29o/o

54.84%

Number
Tax of Top Ten

Remitted Taxpavers Taxpavers

Number Number

Tax of Top Ten Tax of ToP Ten

Remitted _ _Ef,3lg Jaxpayerq .ReI?itted , Jaxp?yers T,axpayers

General merchandise $ 81,931,572

Auto and agriculture 5,188,651

Manufacturing machin" &

Totals $ 88,699,969

22.24o/o $ 83,489,4Q2

69.230/o 5,639,050

62.100/o 2.030.688

$ 91,159,140

22.85% s 85,240,200

30.81% 6,218,155

72.62% 2.176.889

$ 93,635,244

--

6,045

2tl
, 354

_ggl9_

2014

6,198

228

.3i0

:616

6,1 83

228

.r. ,376

6,787

22.72%

56.91o/o

8l ,00%

General merchandise $ 87,207,079 6,466

Auto and agriculture 6,463,861 243

Manufacturing machine & 357

Number
Tax of Top Ten

Remitted Taxpavers Taxpavers

24.02o/o

83.t2%

8 r.83%

Totals $ 95,775,101 _466_

Notcr Top ten taxpayeE represnts th€ percentage oftotal tax remitted by the largest ten sales tax remitters per sales category.

Source: City Revenue Division ofthe Departnent ofFinmce.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
SCHEDULE 8
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING SALES TAX RATES

Fiscal Year
City Direct

Rate
Montgomery

9ounty

2.500

2.500

2.50%
2.5004

2.50%
2.5004

2.500

2.500

2,500

2.500

State of
Alabama

Total Sales

Tax

2005

2006
2007

2008

2009

2010

20tl
20r2
20t3
20r4

3.50Yo

3.50%
3.50%
3.500h

3.50%
3.500

3,500

3.500

3.500A

3.50%

4,000

4.000

4.00Yo

4.00Yo

4.000

4,00Yo

4.000

4.}ao6
4.000

4.00Yo

10.00%

10.00%

10.00%

10.00%

10.00%

10,00%

10.00%

10.00%

10.00%

10.00%

Sources: City Revenue Division of the Department of Finance and Montgomery County Department of Finance.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
SCHEDULE 9
PRINCIPAL SALES TAX REMITTERS

2005 2(Xb 2w7 200E 2W9 2010 20ll 2012 2013 2014
.]j@ - p61qtrgc- Pffirg. Pecil.gc - P@t g. Pcrdugc P.ret F Fcrubae P@.trgc PcruLgc

of Total Sales of Total Sales of Total Sales of Total Sales of Totel Saks of Total Sales of Total Sales of Total Sales of Totgl Sales of Total Sales

R.rk Tu R.nificd Rrnk Tu Rdincd R.!k Tu Rdifi.d R.!k Tr Roiitcd Rr* Tr &dr.d Rink Td iq@L Rrk , Tr Rcrild Rrrk Tu ncnitEd Rrk Tu Rdin d R.nk Ts R.ilftred

--
Tar Renitter

Wal-Mart East, LP
Winn Dixie of Montgomery
Sams East
Brunos Super Markets
Honre Depot USA, Inc.

Lowes of Montgomery
Target Store

Best Buy Stores, LP
Capitol Chewolet/IMF, [nc.

Parisian
Publix Alabanq LLC
Gayfers/Dillards
Costco Wholesale

Hyundai Manufacturing
Jack Ingram Motors, Co.

Totals

I
2

J

4

5

6
7

8

9

l0

6.42o/o

3.54o/o

2.87o/o

2.44o/o

1.50o/o

1.460/o

l.lgYo
0.93o/o

0.88%
0.85o/o

I
2
J

5

8

6
7

9

6.44o/o

2.84Vo
2.83o/o

1.54o/o

L.l8o/o
I.38o/o

1.32o/o

0.98o/o

l0

I
J

2

7

9
6
5

8

6
2

9
8

J

4
9
8
2

6.88o/s I
2.680/o 2

2.78o/o 3

l.l7o/o 5

0.91o/o

l.3lo/o 6

I.360/o 7

0.95o/o l0

I 6.360/o I
2 2.95o/o 5

4 2.81o/o 3

6.980/o I
2.77o/o 3

3.32o/o 4

6.640/o I
2.560/o 5

2.52o/o 4

6.280/o I
2.33o/o 5

2.52o/o 4

6.060/o

2.71o/o

2.59o/o

I.20o/o

5.91o/o I
2.38o/o 4

2.49/o 3

5.52o/o

2.650/o

2.70o/o

-10
l.2Ao/o 8

l.L9o/o 7

0.93o/o 9

0.79o/o

l.l4o/o
l.2lo/o
0.91o/o

6
10

2.23o/o 5

l.2lo/o 10

2.12o/o 7

1.20o/o l0
1.99o/o

l.l9o/o
-10

l.l3o/o 8

1.03o/o

l.l4o/o

22.08o/o

-

21.22o/o

-

21.04o/o

-

20.37o/o 2I.&o/o

3.L4o/o

1.28o/o

1.500
3.93o/o

28.22o/o

-

3.10o/o

1.640/o

1.620/o

1.89/o

25.37o/o

-

2.05o/o

3.14o/o

1.23o/o

1.82o/o

2.89o/o

25.44o/o:

t0
4

0.91o/o l0
l.80%o 4

0.87o/o

2.13o/o 2.43o/o

1.09o/o

0.970

2.89o/o

L.27o/o

l.3lo/o

1.860/o 2.08o/o 2.04o/o

3.02o/o

l.l9/o
1.97o/o

4.22o/o

1.060/o

3.35o/o

1.260/o

2.31o/o

1.760/o

2

7

5

6

J

9
8

2

7

-

r'98o/o 

-

26.330/o 22.78o/o

-
Source: City Revenue Division ofthe Deparrnent ofFinance.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
SCHEDULE IO

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

Governmental Activities

Fiscal
Year

General
Obligation
Bonds (a)

2005 $ 141,665,000

2006 17 5,655,539
2007 213,266,350
2008 205,882,794
2009 202,564,561

2010 265,981,223

201 I 260,253,900
2012 254,266,917
2013 304,070,449
2014 293,365,995

Revenue
Warrants

Capital
Leases

Notes

tayablp

$

952,351
| ,7 30,3 70

Total
Outstanding

Debt

Percentage Percentage

of Taxable of Personal

.Saleg(b) Income (c),.

$ 26,190,000
24,670,000
24,115,000
23,520,000
I 8,3 85,000

18,205,000

17 ,97 5,000
17,690,000

$ 9,472,445
10,821,537

12,673,006

14,202,106
13,445,826
I1,003,130
10,600,73 5

19,991 ,063
18,956,267

17 ,895,621

s 177,327,445
2ll,l47 ,07 6

250,054,356
243,604,900
234,395,387
295,1 89,3 53

288,829,635
291,947,980
323,979,067
312,991,97 6

5.96%
6.84%
7.94%
8.19o/o

8.89%
r0.68%
10.t50/o

9.78Vo

t0.60%
10.00%

4,540h
4,620/o

5,340/o

5,14%
5,020/o

5,990

6.0r%
6)2%
6,640

6.24%

Notes: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

(a) General Obligation Bonds presented net of original issuance discounts and premiums.
(b) See Schedule 6 for net taxable sales.

(c) See Schedule I 5 for personal income and population data.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
SCHEDULE 1I
RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

Fiscal
Year

General
Obligation
Bon-ds (a)

$ 14r,665,000
17 5,655 ,539
213,266,350

205,992,794

202,564,561

265,981,223

260,253,900

254,266,917

304,070,449

293,365,995

Less: Amount
Available in
Debt Service

Fund (b)

4,443,282
4,137,141

2,809,696
2,351,97 6

2,501,349

2,000,065

2,506,239

2,139,717

1,212,885

Percentage of Liability
Net Taxable Per Capita

Sales (c) Popula qql4lTotal

2005

2006
2007

2008

2009

20t0
20rr
20t2
2013

20r4

$ 137 ,221,718
171,5 18,398

210,457,654

203,530,81 8

200,063,212

263,981,158

257 ,7 47 ,661
252,127,200

302,85 7 ,564
293,365,985

4,61%
5.560h

6.6804

6.840h

7 .590

9.560h

9.060

8.54yo

9,900h

9.3804

680,77

850.92

1,044. 10

1,009 .7 4

992.53

1,282.93

1,252,64

1,225.32

1,471 .87

1,425.7 4

Notes: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

(a) General Obligation Bonds presented net ofdefened amounts.

(b) This is the amount restricted for debt service principal payments.

(c) See Schedule 6 for net ta,rable sales.

(d) See Schedule 15 forpopulation data-
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
SCHEDULE 12

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTryITIES DEBT

Governmental Unit

2005
Direct
City of Montgomery:

General Obligation including
Capital Leases

Overlapping
County of Montgomery:

Montgomery County General and

Limited Obligation Wanants

Total direct and overlapping debt

2006
Direct
City of Montgomery:

General Obligation including
Capital Leases

Overlapping
County of Montgomery:

Montgomery County General and

Limited Obligation Warrants

Total direct and overlapping debt

2007

Direct
City of Montgomery:

General Obligation including
Capital Leases

Overlapping
County of Montgomery:

Montgomery County General and

Limited Obligation Warrants

Total direct and overlapping debt

Estimated

Estimated
Share of

Direct and

Debt Percentage Overlapping

Outstanqllg APPlicable (a) Debt

$ 177,327,445 100.000% $ 177,327,445

41,270,000 85.8 I % 35,413 ,7 87

$ 218,597,445 s 212,7 41,232

$ 2ll,l47 ,076 100.00% $ 211,147,076

112,877,677 85.03% 95,976,480

$ 324,024,753 $ 307,123,556

$ 250,054,356 100.00% $ 250,054,356

144.87 5.820 85.02% 123,179,018

$ 394,930,176 $ 373,233,37 4

(Continued)
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
SCHEDULE I2
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTTVITIES DEBT (CONTINI.JED)

Governmental Unit

2008
Direct
City of Montgomery:

General Obligation including
Capital Leases

Overlapping
County of Montgomery:

Montgomery County General and

Limited Obligation Wanants

Total direct and overlapping debt

2009
Direct
City of Montgomery:

General Obligation including
Capital Leases

Overlapping
County of Montgomery:

Montgomery County General and

Limited Obligation Warrants

Total direct and overlapping debt

2010
Direct
City of Montgomery:

General Obligation including
Capital Leases

Overlapping
County of Montgomery:

Montgomery County General and

Limited Obligation Warrants

Total direct and overlapping debt

20tl
Direct
City of Montgomery:

General Obligation including
Capital Leases

Overlapping
County of Montgomery:

Montgomery County General and
Limited Obligation Warrants

Total direct and overlapping debt

Bstimated

Estimated
Share of

Direct and

Debt Percentage Overlapping
Outstanding ApPlicable (a) Debt

$ 243,6A4,900 100.00% $ 243,604,900

140,090,000 79.48% I I1,336,779

$ 383,694,900 $ 354,941,679

$ 234,395,387 100.00% $ 234,395,387

136,055,000 85.58% 116,433,543

$ 37 0,450,3 87 $ 3 50,828,93 0

$ 295,1 89,3 53 100.00% $ 295,189,353

132.07 0.000 86.81% 114,648,161

$ 427,259,353 $ 409,837,5 l4

$ 288,829,635 100.00% $ 288,829 ,635

128.015"000 87 ,460 111,966,226

$ 416,844,635

r06
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
SCHEDULE 12

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTryITIES DEBT (CONTINUED)

Governmental Unit

2012
Direct
City of Montgomery:

General Obligation including
Capital Leases

Overlapping
County of Montgomery:

Montgomery County General and

Limited Obligation Warrants

Total direct and overlapping debt

2013
Direct
City of Montgomery:

General Obligation including
Capital Leases

Overlapping
County of Montgomery:

Montgomery County General and

Limited Obligation Wanants

Total direct and overlapping debt

2014
Direct
City of Montgomery:

General Obligation including
Capital Leases

Overlapping
County of Montgomery:

Montgomery County General and

Limited Obligation Warrants

Total direct and overlapping debt

Estimated

Estimated
Share of

Direct and

Debt Percen tage Overlapping

Outstanding Applicable (a) Debt

$ 291,947,980 100.00% $ 291,947,980

128,091,936 86.87% 111,269,059

$ 420,039,916 $ 403,217 ,039

$ 323,979,067 100.00% $ 3ll,777 ,433

121,235,000 86J 5o/o 105,17 4'488

$ 445,214,067 $ 416,951,921

$ 312,991,97 6 100.00% $ 312,991,97 6

121,129,218 86.68% 104,999,970

$ 434,121,194 $ 417,991,946

Sources: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentagcs provided by the Montgomery County Revenue Commissioner. Debt

outstanding data provided by the Montgomery County Commission.

Notes: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the City. This schedule

estimates the portion ofthe outstanding debt ofthose overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and businesses ofthe City of
Montgomery. This process recognizes that, when considering the City's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden

borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that evcry taxpayer is a resident, and

therefore responsible for repaying the debt, ofeach overlapping government.

(a) The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values. Applicable percentages were

estimated by determining the portion of the City's taxable assessed value that is within the County's boundaries and dividing it by the

Countv's total taxable assessed value.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
SCHEDULE 13

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

Fiscal Year

Debt limit

Total net debt applicable to limit

Legal debt rnargin

Total net debt applicable to the limit
as a percentage of debt limit

$ 390,490,584

158,327,445

-

s 232,163,L39

40.55o/o

$ 453,968,000

192,911,537

s 26r9s6463

42.4f/o

$ 453,972,540

189,594,143

s 2643?Wn

41.760/o

$ 549,783,152

r85,430,776

s 3643523?6

33.73%

$ 565,013,780 $ 559,440,631

178,602,164 224,288,072

--

s 386,41 1,616 $ 335,152,559

31.61% 40.0f/o

2010 20ll

s 551,311,856

220,390,601

-

s $0,91255

39.98%

20t2 2013

$ 524,101,032 $ 531,082,554

237,372,574 249,669,288

s 286J28As8 S 28rA13266

4s.29% 47.01%

2014

$ 538,171,288

254,388,183

s 283,783,105

47.27o/o

s 2,69Q,856,440

$ 538,171,288

$ 312,991,976

/5R r{O? 791\

254,388,183

$ 283,783,105

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2Ol4

Assessed properry value

Debt limrt (20% of assessed proprty value)

Debt applicable to limit:
General obligation debt including capital leases and notes payable

Less: Debt attributable to consffuction of school
houses

Total net debt applicable to limit

Legal debt margin
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
SCHEDULE 14

PLEDGED-REVENUE COVERAGE

Revenue Warrants

Fiscal Year
Lodging Tax

Revenue
Debt Service

Interest Coverage

2005

2006
2007

2008

2009

2010

20rl
20t2
2013

20t4

l,4gg,g65
r,599,457
1,613,870

1,622,5 84

1,57 8,726

l,6lg,59l
1,823,172

r,782,052
1,805,041

N/A

, Principal

$ 500,000

1,520,000

55 5,000

595,000

5,13 5,000

180,000

230,000

285,000

340,000
N/A

1,301,632

1,445,468

1,417 ,613
1,288,1 l5
1,105 ,969
1,077 ,463
1,067 ,213
1,054,33I

523,606

N/A

0.83

0.54

0,82

0.86

0,25

1,29

l.4l
I .33

2.09

N/A

Notes: Details regarding the City's revenue warrants can be found in the notes to the financial statements. The

revenue warrants issued in December 2003 are secured by 2.5% of the 8.5% lodging tax levied by the City. The

warrants were defeased in November 2012 with the issuance of the General Obligation Warrants, Series 2012-A
and2012-8.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
SCHEDULE I5
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

Calendar
Year

Personal
Income

$ 3,907,395,680
4,572,368,512
4,682,223,072
4,7 43,902,880
4,672,346,240
4,931,7 51,552
4,807,264,332
4,7 68,786,464
4,880,927,844
5,01 3,439,860

Population

201,569
201,569
201,568
201,569
201,569
205,7 64
205,7 64
205,7 64

205,7 64
245,7 64

2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
20ll
2012
20r3
2014

Per
Capita

Personal
Income

School
Enrollment

Montgomery
County

Unemployment
Rate

4.3%
3,40

3.70

5.40

l0.loh
9.20

la.00h
7.gYo

7 .lo
6.6%

19,385

22,684
23,229
23,535
23, I 80

23,968
23,363
23,17 6

23,721
24,365

32,653
32,520
31,939
3l,588
31,7 43

3 1,681

3 I,681
31,470
3 1,3 l6
3 1,3 l6

Sources: Population information provided by the 2000 and 2010 Census. Personal income information provided by the

Economic Development Partrrership of Alabama. Unemployment data provided by the State Department of Labor. School

enrollment data provided by Montgomery County Public School Board.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
SCHEDULE 16

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

2006 2014

Emplover

Maxwell-Gunter Air Force Base

State of Alabama
Montgomery Public Schools

Baptist Health Systems

Hyundai Motor Manufacturing AL
ALFA Insurance Companies

City of Montgomery
MOBIS Alabamq LLC
Jackson Hospital & Clinic, Inc.

Rheem Water Heaters

7 54th Electronic Systems Group

Totals

Employees

12,280

9,500

3,700
4,300

2,700
2,568
2,500

1,30;
1,050

1,943

Percentage
of Total City
Employnen!

6.31o

4.88%
1,900h

2.21%
r.390

r.320

l.28Yo

0.671/o

0.540

1.00%

Employee,s

12,280

I 1,930

4,524
4,300

3,1 00

2,568
2,500

1,400

1,300

1,173

Percentage
of Total Cify
Empfoymeql!,

6.48%
6.24Yo

2.390

2.270h

1.6404

1.360

1,320

0.6904

0.640

0.62Yo

41,841 21 50% 44,97 5 23.6504

Source: Montgomery Chamber of Commerce.

Note: This schedule presents 2014 compared to 2006 since the information for 2005 was not available.
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
SCTIEDULE I7
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FLINCTION

Full-time Equivalent Employees as of September 30- 2oto 2011 2012 2013 ]!14
Function/Program

General government:
Mayor
City Clerk
City Attorney
City Investigation
Development
Finance
Information Technolory
Garage
Municipal Court
Municipal Parking Deck
Planning and Development
Risk Management
3l I Call Center

Public safety:
Police:

Officers
Civilians

Fire:
Officers
Civilians

City/County Emergency Management Agency
Communications

Public works:
Engineering
Inspections
Landfill
Maintenance
Sanitation
Traffic Engineering

Cultural and recreational:
Parks and Recreation
Civic Center
Downtown Redevelopment
Food Services
Lagoon and Gateway Parks

Leisure Department - Building Maintenance
Library
Montgomery Zoo
Museum
Old Alabama Town
Public Information and External Affairs

Total

Source: City Finance Department.

5

4

7

666
333
599

6;

77

40

2

35

?;

77

40
2

36

55

l9
80

43
3

38

6

4

'1

59

24
75

48
4

36

6

4

'1

))
20

74
49

5

34

8

4

'1

57
2l
63
48

6

35

8

4

8

3

2

54
l9
6r
46

6

3l

8

3

8

3

2

5l
29

64
44
l3
32

6

5

8

4

I
2

2

50
3l
56
45

l3
3r

6

7

523 506

136 134

552 s52
88
54

48 56

2t 2l
35 3l
18 16

r93 183

246 258

38 36

253 294

5;
l4
78

52
5

36

501

r43

550

7

3

84

t:

340

322
4l

304

30

7;
82

39

483

r4l

s37
7

3

85

'1

324
323
43

306

485

t42

515
7

4

79

t:

313

336
45

304

512
t47

542
8

3

88

326
3ll
44

294

507
173

539
9

5

86

26

38
20

276

316
4l

286

500
168

496
8

ll
8l

25

36

2l
201
28r

42

267

528
207

550
9

ll
77

26

37

2l
207

289
4l

25r

523

16l

551

9

ll
72

23

35

l9
195

262
42

260

6

4l

6;
9l
36

4

9

4l

6;
92

37
4

9

42

6;
87
40

4

8

3l
103

65

92

36
4

8

28
67
63

89

34

9

24

68
63

75

t;
t4
6l
6l
5l
37

:)
ll
60
62
45

l;
63

60
46

35

6

_2 4q__? *m_ _2n.__Z_l!!_ _2r2o_ J!!!_ _21u_ _2.64e_ _2568_ _?M_

Notes: A full-time employee is scheduled to work 40 hours per week (including vacation and sick leave).
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CITY OF MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA
SCHEDULE I8
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

Fiscal Year

2009 2010 20ll 2012 2013 2014

--r------

Function/Proqram

General government:

Business licenses issued

Building permits issued

Public safety:

Police:

Physical arrests

Parking violations

Traffic violations

Fire:

Emergency responses

Fires extinguished
Inspections

Public works:

Refuse collected (tons per year)

Recyclables collected (tons per year)

Streets resurfaced (tons of paving material)

Transit:

Passengers

Cultural and recreational:

Library:
Total circulation

Parks and Recreation:

Golf rounds played

Youth baseball/softball games played

League and tournament games played

Games played in athletic facilities:
Basketball

Volleyball
Football

Soccer

Kickball

Sources: Various City deparErrents.

17,264

12,457

8,773

77,476

46,244

27,564

5,487

19,178

t4l,959
) ))\

43,680

749,554

471,328

25,386

6,296

2,663

739

58

375

1,230

17,6U 17,81I

11,176 10,99

8,423 10,104

77,205 68,667

56,777 66,669

29,A2 30,032

5,341 5,236

24,122 28,792

132,813 130,537

2.222 2,185

52,884 42,885

907,999 1,086,762

497,872 445,882

27,926 39,871

6,231 6,278

2,845 2,920

765 7n
58 75

378 385

1,245 1,275

16,909 16,922

7,813 5,919

6,981 10,436

73,006 57,674

119,416 I17,158

30,21I 28,578

5,666 5,006

I 8,140 I 8,966

t32,645 123,504

2,690 2,775

44,228 44,247

1,328,459 1,336,936

458,072 450,285

39,926 40,053

6,295 6,361

2,935 2,568

810 825

84 75

395 408

1,290 1,305

15,353 14,975

6,578 6,705

11,493 11,003

51,744 51,744

104,462 104,462

25,510 26,M3
5,339 4,959

15,661 17,940

I12,889 I14,310
|,275 578

28,023 30,055

1,361,928 |,202,482

448,993 446,657

40,108 38,922

6,291 6,351

3,018 2,782

832 912

82 86

41 5 421

|,320 1,358

14,826

6,834

15,982

31,754

108,143

26,972

4,796

18,787

I I1,049
581

25,739

1,036,087

416,320

24,740

6,415

2,840

1,028

2ls
450

1,460

14,741

7,554

13,973

37,022

87,425

24, I 55

4.930

18,425

112,676

559

42,1W

958,023

390,571

37,017

6,435

2,865

292

167

4l
1,620

75

14,793

8,303

I 1,583

3l ,505

78,070

27.299

7,047

t 5,898

68,341

39,772

33,750

941.920

367,149

33,340

6,503

2,888

443

185

43

1,680

80

I l3



CITY OF MONTGOMERYO ALABAMA
SCHEDULE 19

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

Fiscal Year
2010 20lt 2012

---

2013 2014

--

Function/?rosram

Public safety:

Police:

Stations

Patrol cars

Fire stations

Public works:

Streets (miles)

Traflic signals

Street lights
Refuse collection trucks

Transit:
Busses

Cultural and recreational:

Acreage

Golf courses (acres)

Playgrounds

Baseball/softball fi elds

Tennis courts

Special facilities

Community centers

I

270

l5

I

270

l5

- 1,079

420 429

27 ,812 27,906
l 19 134

43 43

1,720 1,722

410 610

60 60

84 84

42 42

66
28 28

I

224

l5

1,085

438

28,01I
130

43

1,722

610

58

90

42

6

28

I

224

l5

1,099

438

28,230
t28

50

1,822

610

58

90

42

6

28

l

223

l5

l,l l0
478

28,981

l2s

55

1,836

610

52

87

46

6

26

I

23s

l5

l,l l5
483

29,000
127

48

1,836

610

52

87

46

7

26

I

248
l5

I

216

l5

1,107 7,203

470 474

29,013 29,057

lzs 130

50 45

1,827 1,836

610 610

55 54

87 87

46 46

66
28 26

I

240
l5

3

252

16

l,l l8 1,107

436 429

29,012 29,032
r29 na

48 4s

1,857 1,857

610 610

s2 s2

87 87

46 46

77
23 23

Sources: Various City departments.

Notes: No capital asset indicators are available for the general govemment. Street mileage for years prior to 2006 could not be determined.
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